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. Andina ple
STRATEGIC REPORT
" HIGHLIGHTS

Andina plc (*Andina” or the “Company” and with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is a Latin American energy group.. =

- Qur financial results mcorporatmg the results of Andina together wrth its subsrdrarres for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out below, - :

| Year ended 31 December : . 2018 2017
o . . USSm USSm
Revenue - L 2482 | . 245.1
Operating loss : (13.5) (2.6)

BUSINESS REVIEW

. The Group’s focus is on the energy sector including electricity generation and- distribution on the regulated public sector in
South America. Its principal assets are a 51% indirect controlling interest in Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad de
Mendoza S. A. (“EDEMSA”) the main electricity distribution company in the Province of Mendoza and a 47% indirect

_ controlling interest in Hrdroelectnca Ameghmo S. A (“HASA” , a 60MW -hydroelectric power plant in the Provmce of

Chubut.

"+ TRADING AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Revenue for the Group for the year increased from US$245.1 mllhon in 2017 to US$248 2 million'in 2018 Revenue from

operating activities in local currency increased by 39% year on year but the devaluation of the Argentine peso (“*AR$")
against the US dollar (“US$”) resulted in Group revenue in the reporting currency of US$ i incréasing by 1.3% (see Note 2.10

~ for details of changes in exchange rates). The distribution business represents 96. 8% of Group revenue and the generating .

-busmess and corporate represents | the remalmng 3.2%.

The Group s total assets have mcreased from US$254 0 mlllron at the end of 2017 to US$337.5 mlllron at the end of 2018.

The increase mainly resulted from the mflatlon adjustment of pr operty, lant and equnpment in EDEMSA

* Total-current liabilities decreased from US$254.5 million at the end of 2017 to US$164.5 million at the end of 2018. At the

year-end ‘the Group had cash resources of US$22 3 million compared to US$5.1 mrlllon at the end of 2017.

. Borrowmgs have decreased from’ US$163 mrl]ron at the end .of 2017 to US$11.6 million at the end of 2018. Current

borrowings increased from US$7.2 million at the endof 2017 to US$10.0 million at the end of 2018 and non' current

borrowings decreased from US$9:Imillion and the end of 2017 to US$1.6 million at the end of 2018.
The directors will notﬁbe_reeommending the payment of a dividend for Andina Plc.
OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW '

" Due to the devaluatlon of the AR$ referred to above, the financial review has been prepared in AR$ and US$ to enable the
reader to better understand the underlying performance of the business. :

EDEMSA
Fr'nancial ‘

It is important to point out that the financial statements have been adjusted for inflation-and restated, sirice in 2018 EDEMSA

modified the valuation of the high voltage networks and the power transformers within Property, Plant and Equrpment as the
directors’s consider that the historic cost adjusted by the inflation model reflects more adequately the carrying value of the
assets of the Company.

In 2018 EDEMSA reported a post-tax gain of US$20.8- million compared with US$15.2 loss million in 2017. Sales for the
yearhave increased primarily from the increase in tariffs. The tariff increases for the 4th tariff period arise from Decree No.
2573/15, pursuant to which the new tariffs were implemented quarterly with effect from 1 March 2016 until 1 June 2017.
Additionally, Decree No. 1163/17 approved tariff adjustments resulting from inflation since the tariff review took‘ place in
2015. This adjustment, backdated to February 2017, was put into efféct partially in July 2017 and the remainder in November
2017, with the backdated portion to be collected in 9 monthly instaliments from November 2017 to July 2018. Finally,sin
December. 2017, the Provincial parhament passed Law 9034 which included a further tariff increase to finance an additional
capex programme to be executed prior to 31 July 2018. This increase was also backdated to.February 2017, with the
backdated portion to be collected in monthly instalments up to July 31, 2018. Tariff increases are collected prospectively.
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Andma ple
_ STRATL‘GIC REPORT (contmued)
EDEMSA (continued) ‘
" Financial (co:ttilxxlefl)»

-On 8 February 2017, the. Ente. Provincial Regulador Eléctrico (“EPRE”) notified ‘Resolution EPRE No. 5/17 to start the
process of the 5th tariff revision, for the period starting on 1 August 2018 up to 31 July 2023. On 5 June 2018, the EPRE
through Resolution EPRE No. 75/18 called for a public hearing in order to consider the new tanff scheme The publxc hearmg
was held on 3 July 2018.

_ Later, Decree No. 1238/18, publish‘ed on 1 August 2018 instructs the EPRE to determine and enforce the new tariff tables for
_ the 5th Tariff Period, enforceable as of the date of publication. The new tariff tables published were the same as those in

" force as of July 31, 2018. In August 2018, EDEMSA appealed the decree on the basis that none of the addmonal costs from
July 2018 onwards were included. The resolution of that appealed is sttll pending.

On 19 October 2018, the company requested the EPRE to review the procedures to update the Distribution Value Add
“ (“VAD?”) portion of the tariff in accordance with Decree No. 48/17 and in line with Decree No. 2573/15, to be applied as of
February 2019. The EPRE, through Resolution No. 54/19, called for a public hearing in order to consider the new tariff
scheme. The public hearing was held on 5 April 2019. On July 4, 2019, Decree No. 1481/19 was published, it instructs EPRE
“to put into effect new tariff scheme effective as of 4 July 2019 which reflects the results of thé public hearing.

- Payments to CAMMESA

"~ - . On 7'March 2018, EDEMSA presented to CAMMESA an irrevocable offer to pay the debt owed to the Wholesale Electric

Power Market (“MEM?) for the outstanding balance of invoices due between 9 May 2012 and 31 January 2016. .This offer
was framed within the guidelines established by the Secretary of Electric Energy to CAMMESA, in which'it is mstructed to
accept payment proposals that comply with such condmons

This payment plan was formally accepted by CAMMESA on 8 March 2018 The payment plan included a reductlon of late

charges, a grace period from'1 February 2016 to April 2018, a financing term of 90 months untll September 2025 and a fi xed
annual intérest rate of 10%. The agreement is being fulfilled. o

As of 31 December 2018, EDEMSA had paid the energy purchase invoices dated between February 2016 to June 2018 to
CAMMESA and was past due in the payments of the invoices for July, August, September, October, November and
December 2018. Invoices for _energy purchases for the year 2019 have been paid as they fall due. The payment of the
outstanding balances of US$ 62.8 is being negotiated as at the date of issuance of this report and is classxﬁed as a current
hablhty :

Compensation of debt

On 21 December 2016, Law 27341 was published (the 2017 National Budget’Law), in which Article 15 established that the -

Ministry of Energy in consultation with the Provincial jurisdictions, will determine the differences in income received by the
distributors during the Tariff Convergence Programme in 2014 and 2015 (time in which electricity tariffs were frozen),
compared with the income that would have corresponded to them if the concession contract had been apphed (“Foregorie
1ncome”) : .

* Due to this article, the National Government ‘'should have instructed CAMMESA to apply the Foregone Income credit
calculation to the cancellation of the debts that the distributors maintained with CAMMESA, subject to their withdrawal of
any legal or administrative claims related to the Tariff Convergence Programme. It should be noted that the Foregone Income
of EDEMSA during the existence of the Tariff Convergence Program was greater than its debt wnth CAMMESA subject to
compensation as detailed in the prevnous section. . .

The Ministry of Energy did not put into effect the debt compensatlon mandated by the 2017 Natlonal Budget Law and this
instruction was not repeated in the 2018 National Budget Law. On 27 October 2017, EDEMSA submitted a. formal

administrative.claim to request the application of Article 15 of Law 27.341. It is important to mention that the Provincial -

Regulator (EPRE) has determined the Foregone Income of EDEMSA during the Tariff Convergence Program 2014 = 2015.
This claim is pending response as of the date of approval of these fmanc1al statements On 7 May 2018, EDEMSA requested
a quick response (“Pronto Despacho™). . _ -
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Andina plc
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
EDEMSA (continued) : : .
Financial (contr'riuerl)

. 'Administrative expenses ' and marketing costs, in local currency, increased less than inflation year on year. The biggest
rncreases were seen in salarres and social security costs, trammg & other personnel expenses. .

Operating !oss has increase mamly due to the 1mpa|rment of Property, Plant and' Equipment. The Company completed a
- discounted cash flow analysis which resulted in an impairment ‘of non-current assets as the discounted cash flows exceeded
the net book value of the assets. The impairment was driven by the application of IAS 29.

The t' nancral income results from.the refinancing of the debt with CAMMESA and gains from f nane1a1 assets, The financial’
costs primarily result from interest on the outstandmg debt with CAMMESA
7

Total liabilities have increased during the year mainly due to lack of payment to CAMMESA from August to December 2018
but because of the devaluation of Argentine peso there is a decrease of 18.2% from 2017. . - .

.Operational and commercral
~ During 2018, progre'ss was made in ’consolidating the improvements made in previotis 'years_in relation to productivity and
process efficiency. In that regard, the company. has worked intensively with large customers to introduce new economic
- technical solutions to meet their needs. Some of them have joined the demand whlle some others will be mcluded in 2019 and

2020, due to the mfrastructure investment required,

During the year, the company has restructured its measurement and brllmg system wrth the aim to improve process
: effrcrency Addmonally, the company contmued with its plan to convert the physmal invoice rnto a digital one. .

Energy losses: During 2018 the level of energy losses increased to 14 09%. The trend of energy losses is as follows:
‘December 2015: 10.94%; December 2016: 12.35%; and December 2017: 12.66%. This increase in losses was prrmanly due
to a decrease in the demand from large industries (which historically. have lower energy losses) and due to the increase in
tariffs after the removal of subsidies during the economic recessxon This affected the most vulnerable populatron toa greater
extent and increased the level of energy loss. .

HASA

F manczal

The company recorded a profit after tax for the year of US$0.8 mrllron compared to the 2017 proﬁt after tax of US$1.1 -
million. Sales increased to US$6.3 million compared to US$6.1 million in 2017. The power generated in 2018 was 122 GWh,
a decrease of 38% compared to the 196 GWh generated in 2017. The increase in total revente was mainly due to the increase
in tanff : .

_ :The current tarrff structure was established under Resolutron 019/2017 S. E a modrﬁcatron of Resolution 022/2016 S.E.
Operational

Water supply durlng the year was 929.5 hm? compared to 1.450 hm“ in 2017.

The total energy produced durmg the year was sold in the spot market Collections on brllmgs to CAMMESA remained
constant at 60 days, the same level as 2017, .

' EARNINGS PER SHARE I _— —

Basic ana diluted profit per share was 0.08 cents ifi 2018 compared to a loss r)er share of 0.12 cents in 2017.



Andina plc-

o STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
KEY PERI‘ORMANCE INDICATORS ’

The directors use a range of performance 1nd1cators to momtor progress in the delxvery of the Group’s strategic objectives, to
assess actual performance aoa.mst targets and to ard management of the busmess and consider the followmo relevant in
assessing performance e . : .

‘Revemle o ‘ ‘ o CL , e v ‘
Sales provide a measure of the Group’s activity that is mﬂuenced by the demand for electrrcrty, the amount of electncxty .
genératéd and energy prices. Revenue increased from AR$4 558 million (US$245.1 mnlhon) in 2017 to AR$9,332 million
(US$248 2 nulhon) in 2018.

. v

. Gross margin .
This represents the margin generated by the core busiress and excludes all' non-operating costs, such as financing and tax
expenses as well as any one-off items. Gross margin increased to 17. 6% in 2018 from 16.5% in 2017. '

- Energy losse.r

This measures the efficiency of the energ y distributed ‘and includes the techmcal and commercnal loss Energy losses
increased from 12.66% at the end of 2017 t0 14.09% at the end of 2018, :

Water level - : :
The reservoir water level is an indication of the amount of power that can be generated The water level at the end of 2018
~ was 154.34 metres compared to 157.4 metres at the end of 2017. AR :

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Management is workmg with the’ regulatory authorities .in order to instrument the Article 15 of law 27 341. The
implementation of the referred article is expected to allow EDEMSA to cancel the exrstmg debt with CAMMESA against the
credit generated from the income not received during the convergence programme in 2014 and 2015, when electricity tariffs
were frozen. : . .

PRINCIPAL msxs AND UNCERTAINTIES

Refer to: lhe Operauonal and anancral Review above for- disclosure of the regulatory and operauonal nsks The ‘main
; regulatory and operalmnal risks relate to taciffs and the sitvation with CAMMESA .

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

Neil Bleasdale
- Chairman ’

- 13 August 2019 - o
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Andina plc
 DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and the audlted consohdated ﬁnancnal statements of Andina for the year ended 31
December 2018.

_ PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group i isa Latm American energy Group, with electricity generation and dlstnbutlon interests in Argentma

t.’

" NAMES, QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE OI" DIRECTORS

- The dlrectors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of SIgmng the financial statements were
as follows: :

Neil Bleasdale (Chmrman)

Neil Bleasdale Jomed the board on 17 May 2013. Neil is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of EDEMSA. He is
a businessman and holds a B.A. (with honours) from the Umversrty of Leeds, England He. also acts as a non-executwe
drrector and alternate director of a number of other Argentme companies., :

~

LI.IIS Alvarez POll (Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secrct‘try)

Luis Alvarez Poh JOll‘le the board on 6 June 2012. Luis graduated as a Certified Pubhc Accountant and Corporate
Administrator from the Universidad Catélica Argentina in Buenos Aires. He also has a postgraduate MBA from the Instituto
de Altos Estudios Empresariales IAE. Luis has more than 20 years of experience in capital markets, investor relations and
financial restructuring in energy and media companies. He was previously a financial director and manager ir, among others,
" Transportadora de Gas del Sur and Petrobras (formerly Perez Companc) and-has worked for Banco Macro in-Buenos Aires.
In 2014 he became president of Hidroeléctrica del Sur S.A (*HDS™).

‘_J orge Depresbltens (Chief Operatmg Ofﬁccr)

Jorge Deplesbrterls joined the board on 17 May 2013. Jorge graduated from Universidad Tecnologrca Nacional with a degree
. in Electrical Engineering in 1982. He has many years of experience in different roles in multi-national electricity conipanies
and is currently the Commercial Manager at EDEMSA responsible for commercial operations, planning and strategies and
customers service. Jorge worked in several management positions in both generation and distribution for CMS Energy from :
1994 to 2008 in Argentina and Venezuela, where he was a General Manager of the vertically-integrated Seneca power
Company in Isla Margarita, with 125, 000 customers.

Carlos Bastos (Non_—Exccutlve Drrector)
Carlos Bastos recently joined the board on 8 May 2018. Carlos graduated as an engineer specialising in energy. He was

Secretary of State for Energy, Public Works and Communications from 1991 to 1996. During that period he established the -
regulatory framework approved by law for the operation of private electric power companies. In later years, he has been

- working for several private companies-as well as in public institutions.

Marcelo Comba (Non—Executwe Director)
Marcelo Comba joined the board on {7 May 2013 Marcelo graduated as a solicitor from the Umversrty of Buenos Aires in :
1988 and became a Master in Business Law in 1994. After working in the legal departments of Siemens S.A. and Ferrovias .

~ SAC, he has worked since 2002 as a Partner in the law firm of Aidar Bestene-Garcia Moreno & Associates. He is also the
. former President of HASA. : . : :

Nigel Jolm Duxbury (Chlef Financial Officer) " -

ngel Duxbury joined the board on 6 June 2012. Nrgel has extensive expenence both as a finance director and senior
executive in small and large quoted and unquoted companies within Europe, Asia and the USA. He has a background in
finance and accountancy, having qualified as a chartered accountant with Touche Ross, London. He resigned from the Board
on April 10, 2018. No indemnity provnsron has been determmed on this regard. .
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The proﬁt for the year, after taxation, amounted to US$18.6 mllllon (2017: US$19.3 million loss)

The directors will not be recommending the payment of a dividend for Andina Plc.



_Andina plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

- FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s exposure to f' nancial risk is set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

The Company was inc,orporated in England and Wales.
COUNTRY OF OPERATION
The Group’s activities are based in Argentina.

GOING CONCERN

. The directors have reviewed the cash position of the Company and the Group-as at 31 December 2018 and for a period of 12
s months from the date of this report and consider it appropriate that the Company and Group financial statements are prepared

on the going concern basrs for the reasons set out below.

At 31 December 2018, as detailed in note 21, the Company was in default of a US$7 4 mtlhon loan having not complied with
the loans repayment terms and had net current liabilities of $8. 2m : :

*

-On 21 August 2018 the Company reeenved a letter from the lender confirming the Company was in default of its loan and

- demanding immediate repayment of the full loan amount. The Company does not have sufficient funds-to repay the loan or

meet future financial liabilities as they fall due. As a result, the directors of the Company have secured a line of credit for up
to US$ 3.6 million, of which US$ 1.0 million has been drawn that covers the full overdue amount and is currently negotlatmg

- with the exrst)ng lender.

The dlrectors are performing a number of acttons to manage the cash flow risk and have a reasonable expectation that they
will be able to renegotiate the terms of the loan based. on their previous history with the lender, including previous
negotiations of the loan terms.. In the event that the directors are unable to reach an agreement with the existing lender or
secure new lines of credit with another third party in order to meet their current fmanc:al liabilities, they could con51der
satisfying the debt through the sale of shares in its subsidiary companies.

- The directors recognise that these circumstances give rise to material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the

Company's and Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, after making enquiries and careful consideration of

" the financial alternatives of the Company, including considering the likelihood of either reaching agreement with the existing

lender of the parent company loan, securing new loans, or considering ‘satisfying its debt through the sale of shares in its
subsidiary compames, the directors have concluded that there is a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate

" resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis

of accounting in preparing the financial statements, which assumes the realisation of assets and discharge of liabilities in the

"normal course of busmess wtthm the foreseeable future

DISCLOSURE OF lNFORMAT[ON TO THE AUDITORS

.

In the case of each person who ‘was a dlrector at the tlme thls report ‘was approved:

~® . so.far as that director was aware there was no relevant audit information of whlch the Company s audrtors were
. unaware; and

e that director has taken all steps that the director ought to have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of
. any relevant audit information and to. establish that the Company s auditors were aware of that mformatton

'Thls information is gtven and should be |nterpreted in accordance with the provrsmns of section 418 of the Companies Act

2006.
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Refer to the Strategic Report.



. Andina pic
. DIRECT ORS’ REPORT (continued)
: EVENTS AFI'ER THE REPORT]VG DATE
'Rt.ﬁ:r w thc Stmtcuc chon
INDLPENDENT AUDI'] ORS

Prlcuvnlex hou#eCoopels LLP hnv¢ bxpresscd their willingness to continde ir oﬁ' ice as auditors and a resolulton 10 re-appoint .
-them wn]l be proposed at the Annual General Meeting, .




Andina plc
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RDSPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATBMDNTS

- The directors are responsrble for preparing the Annual Report and the fmanclal statements in accordance wrth apphcable law
..and regulahon : - o . .

: Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
. {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must-not approve the financial statements

unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of tlie state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or
loss of the group and company for that penod In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to: .

.o select surtable accountlng pohcles and then apply them consistently;

‘e state. whether applicable lFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group ‘financial
statements and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed. for the company financial statements
subject toany matenal departures disclosed and explalned in the financial statements; :

. make Judgements and accountmg estrmates that are reasonable and prudent and

e prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basrs unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the group and
‘company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for takmg reasonable steps
_- for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsrble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group and
" company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company -
and enable.them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Dlrectors' conﬁrmatlons

In the case of each drrector in ofﬁce at the date the Directors’ Report is approved

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audlt mformatlon of which the group and company s audltors are
unaware; and

. - they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the group and company’s auditors are aware of that information.

+
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" Indépendent auditors’report to the members of Anidina plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements-

Opinion = S ' o .
Inour oplmon Andina plc's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the "ﬁnancral statements”)

.. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affan's as at 31 December 2018 and of the
g Group s profit and the Group s'and the Company” s cash flows for the year then ended; . -

e _have been properly prepared in accordance with Internatlona] F mancna] Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
' European Union and, as regards the Company s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provrsxons of
. the Companies Act 2006 and

. o have been prepared in accordance w1th the requlrements of the Compames Act 2006

We have auchted the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report”),
-« which comprise: the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018; the Consolidated
income statement and Corisolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company cash flow
-statements, and the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the
financial statements, which include a description of the signiﬁcant accounting policies. -

... Basis for oplmon '
" We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatlonal Standards on Audltxng (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and apphcable law. Our
" responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described'in the Auditors’ responsxbllmes for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We beheve that the audtt evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcxent and approprlate to prov1de a basis for
‘our oplmon ) .
Independence _
We remained lndependent of the Group in accordance with the ethlcal requrrements that are relevant to our audlt of the
" financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
: responsrbllmes in accordance with these requirements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern - Group and Company
In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure
made in note 2.2 to the financial statements concerning the Group's and Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had net current liabilities of $8.2 million, was in default on a US$7.4million ]oan and
has received a requeést to repay-the loan in full on demand. .

The directors of the Company are performing a number of actions to manage the cash flow risk. This includes negotiating the
terms of the agreement with the lender, securing new loans with third parties and considering raising capital by selling shares
. in subsidiary companies. However, at the date of this report, the outcome of these actions is uncertain. These conditions,
along with other matters explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial

_ statements do not mc]ude the adjustments that would result if the Group or Company were unable to continue as a going
concern,

11



Reporung on other information ' B
- The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Repart other than the financial statements and our
. auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwnse
. exphcxtly stated in thls report, any form of assurance thereon

In connectlon with our audlt of the ﬂnancm] statements onr responsxbrhty is to read the other informalion and in doing so,

- consider whether the other informationis materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
*. - the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material -

. misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there isa materlal misstatement of the financial
statements or a material mlsstatement of the other information. .

- If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is'a'material misstatement of this other information, we are
: requlred to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ report we also considered whether the disclosures requu-ed by the UK
- Compames Act 2006 have been included. - : . .

' Based on the respon51b1ht|es described above and our work undertaken in the course, of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to
o report certain opmxons and matters as descrlbed below.

Strategic report and Dlrectors report
"In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audxt the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2018 is consistent w1th the ﬁnancla] statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requlrements ) .

~In hght of the knowledge and understandmg of the Group and Company and their environment obtamed in the course of the
audit, we dld not identify any material misstatements in the Strategm report and Directors’ report.

Responsxbllmes for the financial statements and the audit

‘Resp onsnbxlmes of the directors for the ﬁnanclal statements ' :

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements set out on page 10,
_the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, The directors are also responsible forsuch internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether due
to fraud-or error. - .

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors erther mtend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operattons, or have no realistic
'a]tematlve but todoso.

12



'Audltors’ responsxbllmes for the audxt of the financial statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud. or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a

" ‘material misstatement when it exists: Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the economic dectsnons of users taken on the basxs of these

: ﬁnanclal statements

. Afurther description of our responsxblhtles for the audlt of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s web51te at:

www.frc.org. uk/audntorsresponsnblhtles This description forms part of our audltors report.

. Use of this report : : :
- This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company S members asa bod yin ‘accordance with

Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or -
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may

* come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other requzred reportmg

Companies, Act 2006 exceptxon reporting

. Under the Compames Act 2006 we are requtred to report toyou if, in our.opinion:. .- g
e we have not recelved all the mformatton and explanations we require for our audit' or
e adequate accountlng records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or - - . '
. certain dlsc]osures of dlrectors remuneratlon specnﬁed by law are not made, or

D the Company ﬁnancml statements are not m agreement w1th the accounting records and returns,

* We have no exceptlons to report arxsmg from this responsxblhty

Peter Acloque (Senior Statutory Auditor)

~ for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audltors

London
13 August 2019
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Andina ple

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE.YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018,

Revenue

- Cost of sales

Grossprofit ' =~ -
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Impairment of property, plant and equipment -
" Other operating income

Operating profit / (loss)

- Finance income

_Finance costs

" Gain on monetary position

Profit/ (loss) before taxation
- Taxation (¢harge) / credit

" Profit / (Loss) for the year

" Profit / (Loss) attributable to:

. Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

Note 31-Dec-i8

31-Dec-17

'US$°000 US$’000.,
- - . (Restated)
‘4 248213 245,070
- (204,424) (204,700) -
43,789 - 40370
- (20,154) - (22,874)
) (20,515) - (22,177) -
12 (17,246) -
619 2,085
- (13,507) (2,596)
7 48,117 4,773
8 " (31,212) - (24,541)
210 24,863 - -
, 28,261 (22,364)
9 . 1(9,679) <3112
18,582 - (19,252)
7,918 (11,927)
10,664 (7,325)
18,582 . (19,252)
. Cents Cents:
10 . 0.08 (0.12)

The notes on pages 22 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements. -

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from pr,ésenting the Company -

profit and loss account.
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“Andina plc .
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENS]VE lNCOME
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note 31 Dcc~18 31-Dec-17
US$’00:(_) .US$°000

_ : _ o ~ (Restated)
Profit / (Loss) for.the year =~ - - 18,582 .- (19;252)
Other comprehensive income / (loss): e
_ ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or Ioss . T .
Other comprehensive loss S0 - (798) (595)
Translation differences : : . 106,080 13971 - -
. Income tax relating to these items . . o -9 200 . 149
Total comprehensive income / (e.xpen'se)' for the year ' o 124,064  (21,095)
Total comprehenswe income / (expense) attributable to o .
.Owners of the parent : , 64,799  -(12,868)
Non-controlling interests . : 59,265 (8,227)

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the year ] 124,064 (21,095)

The above items will not be subseqdcntly reclassified to profit and loss unless the undérlying assets are diSposed of.

B The notes on pages 22 to 62 are an integral part of _these ﬁpancial'statemen_(s_.
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Andma plc
CONSOLIDATLD STATEME!\T OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 DFCEMBER 2018
Note 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
© USS'000  USS’000 US$000 -
) . ' A (Restntcd) " (Restated)
.. Non-current assets _ ‘ ‘
Property, plant-and equipment . Co Co. 12 T 203,530 110,235 87,815
.. Intangiblc asscts L o 3. 8771- . . 6,698 - 8,052
' Deferred tax assets , _ 14 rvs 18993 . 15883
Tnventorics ' ' o 16 3,095 . 3863 4782
' Trade and other receivables ) o .15 145 © 2,623 - 4891
" Total non~currcnt assets T I 215,583 142412 121,423
-+ Current ssscts Po- : AR : . . o
- Inventories . ’ S 16 3696 4,586 5,634
. Tradc-and other receivables . : 15 57441 - 72,819 41,427
Financial asscts. - A . . 17 38,465 . 29,104 16,543
Cash and cash cquivalents v - ' 19 - 22341 5.106 11,306
.. Total current assets . L. oL 121,943 111,615 74,910
, ,_::['otal assets. ... . _— S ) 337,526 ] 254,027 . - 196,333
Current Uabilities .
Trade and other payables . . 20 142,588 224328 168,341
Financial liabilities : 210 9952 7209 11,07
Provisions _ ‘ , 22 ~ 11,995 22,983 12,144
Total current liabilitics : A _ 164,535 254,520 191,556
Non-current liabilities : : . - .
Trade and other payables . , o 20 48,004 14,418 8,715
Financial liabilitics . ' 21 o LelE . 9072 3,511.
Provisions . - S22 507. - 689 © 716
- Deferred tax liabilities ) 14 28.034 4,557 -
Total non-current liabilities : , A 78,156 28,736 . 13,002
Total liabilitics ' " ' : : 242,691 283,256 204,558
. Net assets _ , o . . . 94835 (29,229). - (8,225)
Capital and reserves - s "
Called up sharc capital - : ‘ 23 14,904 14,904 14,904
-Accumulated losses ' ' (47,993) (55,606) . (43,542)°
Merger rescrve ' o A 40,432 40,432 40,432
Translation reserve o : 31,292 (25,894) . (25181)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ' - 38,635 (26,164) . (13,387)
Non-controlling interests . : : 25 56.200 (3,065) 5,162 -
Total cquity ' : ) 94,835 (29,229) (8,225)

The notes on pages 22 to 62 are an intcgral parl of Vlllcsé financial statcments,

The financial statements on pages 14 to 62 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 13 August
" 2019 and were su,ncd on its behalf by: - .

Company No. 8095058

Andina plc
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION -~

31 DECEMBER 2018

Note  31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17
US$'000 ~ USS*000

Non-current assets o - _
“Investments in subsidiarics e 18 32,398 . 34437
‘Total non-current assets - A T 32,398 34,437

"Current assets ) . : . :
Trade and other receivables o 15 100. 2,805

‘Cash and cash equivalents N : . 19 . 20 19 -
" Total current assets L 120 2,824 -
"' Total'assets M T :s8 37260
Current liabilities . : _ .
Tradc and other payables ' . 20 908 1,256
* Financial Jiabilitics o 3 7454 3,097
* Tatal corrent liabilities : : . 8362 - 4,353 -

Non-current Habilities

Trade and other payables ‘ 20 A 2.589 .
Deferred income tax liabilitics S <14 - 2,324
Financis! liabilities o " . 21 913 - 5,652
“Total non-currcnt liabilities - : s 3,502 1,976
Total liabilitis - - © - .. 711864 12329
Netasséts . - o 20654 24932

- Capital and reserves ] - . }
Called up sharc capital : 23 0 14904 14,904
Loss forthc year . g o 1,OSH - @27
Retained losses - : : . . (30,482) (26,950) .
Merger reserve . - 40,432 40,432 -
Translation reserve ) : K . {(3.251) (2,627)

Total equity . - . Co . 20,654 24,932

~ The Cumpz_my’s gain for the year amounted to USS! million (2017 loss: US$ 0.8 millionj.
: . - - - . ) ., .
" . The notes on pages 20 to 62 arc an integral part of these financial statements,

The financial statcments on p: 14 to 62 were approved by the Bbard of Directors andéuthoriéqd for issuc on 13 August

Company No. 8195058
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Andma plc
CONSOLIDATED STATDMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 -

: . Equity
. Accumuiated .. . . attributable . Non
 Called up losses/ . Revaluation Merger Translation:  to oswners of controlling Total
share capital - {(profits) reserve - reserve reserve the parent interests equity

. USSs*000 USS'a00 - USS'000 USS'000 . US$'000 USS'000 Uss'000 USS’'000
Atdl DetembchOIG v 14,904 S (43,542) . 22,071 40,432 (25,181) . 8,684 . 26,368 35,052
Adjustment policy chnngc(Noch 5) . - (22071 - L (207 {21.206) -~ (43277 -
At 1 January 2017 (Restated) S 1490 (43,542) - 40,432 (25,181) (13387 5,162 (8225)
Loss for theyear ’ - (aLen - - - - (e (9325) (19252
Oll;crc0111pr§|1cnsive loss - : (228) - oot - ) (228) - (218) (446)
Translation differences . . ~ - .- - (713) (713) (684) (1,397
;:a':‘l prehensive (loss) / i forde” - T pss) - o ) 012,868) 8227) (21,099
Fair value of share based payments N ©ool . - - . - 91 -t 91
At 31 Deeember 2017 (Restated) . 14904 (55606 . - - 48,432 (25.894) Q6164) . (3065) (29229
Profit for the yeor . 7918 ‘ - Co. 7918 - 10,664- 18,582
_ Other conmrchcnsuvc loss . . - (305). - R - (305) {293) -(598)
Translation dlﬂ'crencr.s (‘) ) - v - .- - 57,186 57,186 .483!9'4 . 106,080
Total prel /(cxT ) for : ) : ’ R : .
thcyear. - ° . . - 7,613 - - 57,186 69,799 59,265 124,064
At 31 Dcncmber 2018 . 14,904 47,993 - 40.432 ) 31,292 38,635 56,200 94,835

The'notes on pages 22 to 62 are an integral part of these ﬁnancxal statements.

@) Includes mmal hypermﬂahon impact of US$137 mlllmn detalled in Note 2. 10 net of US$31 million translatlon 1mpact of :
opening balances at the year end exchange rate.”
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At 31 December 2018

Andma ple

, COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

- FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Translation

_ The notes on pages 22 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.-
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Calledup Accumulated »Merger Total
share capital losses reserve - reserve equity -
__US$000 ~ US$°000 “US$°000 US$°000  USS$’000
At 1 January 2017 14,904 (27,041 40,432 (4,976) 23,319
" Loss for the year - - . (827), - - - (827)
Translation differences - : = 2,349 2,349
Total comprehenswe expense for the year - - - (827) - -2,349 1,522
Fair value of share based payments ‘ - 91 - - o - 91
At 31 December 2017 . 14,904 (27,777 . 40,432 2,627) 24,932
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.5) ) - (2,705) S . - (2,705)
Restated balance at 31 December 2017 ____ - 14,904 (30,482) - 40,432 (2,627)" 22,227
"~ Loss for the year SE e - - SL,051 - o s N "'- " 1,051
Translation differences - o - - - - (2,624)° (2,624)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ’ - 1,051 - (2,624) (1,573)
- 14,904 - - (29,431) . 40432 (5,251) - 20,654



Aﬁdina plc

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT '

* FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 ..

Profit / (Loss) before taxatioh

Adjustments for: -
Depreciation and amortisation
- Increase in inventories ) :
- Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables
. (Decrease)/Increase in creditors and other payables
(Decrease)/lncrease in. provnsmns for llablhtles and charges
Finance costs . )
Impairment of property, plant and eqmpment
‘Finance income :
_Gain on monetary position
Share based payments _
. Cash generatcd from operations .
Taxation paid o
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from mvcstmg.actlwtles -

Purchase of property, plant and’ equlpment
" Purchase of financial assets

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Interest received _ _

Net cash used in mvestihg activities

Cash flows from ﬁnancing'hctivities
‘Repayments of borrowings and interest paid
- Proceeds from borrowing
- Dividends paid by 47% owned subsidiary
Net cash used in financing activities '

" Net increase / (decrease) in cash'and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwalents at the beginning of the year

- Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equnvalents at the end of the year

Slgmf' c'mt non-cash transqctlons

Note

19

31-Dec-18

31-Dec-17

US$000" US$’000
(Restated)
28,261 (22,364)
2,254 3,962 .
(1,776) . (6,477)
117,856 (36,443)
oQanL114) 75,332
. (15,727) 13,766 -
| 25,443 23, 163 -
17,246 -
(9,530) '(4773)
D (24,863) - ... -
‘ - 91
© 28,050 © 46,257
, - ~(1,961)
28,050 44,296
(14,487) (30,946).
(2,843) (16,509)
235 (642)
14,181. 4,351
(2,914) (43,746)
(5,953) (8 224)
464 2,893
. (280) (132)
(5,769) (5,463)
19367 . (4,913)
5,106 - 11,306
(2,132) (1,287)
22,341 . -~ 5,106

There were no significant non-cash transactlons in 2018 or 2017 apart from the transactions detalled below: .

i

Transfer of inventory to property, plant and equipment

.~ Thenotes on pages 22 to 62 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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. Andina pic

) COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBBR 2018

31-Dec-17

“Note  31-Dec-18
S o US$000. US$’000
Profit/ (Loss) for the year before taxation Lost  (827)
) Adjustments for: - B 3

- Decrease in trade and other recelvables (Note 2. 5) - 8 .

[ncrease / (Decrease) in trade creditors and other payables 151 (206)

. Finance costs - : - 344 939

Finance income (1,546) -

 Share based payments - 91

Cash generated in operations . - 5

, Net cash géneratcd in opérating activities - 5

Cash flows from fi nancmg actmtles

- Loans payment - (5)

Net cash used in fi nancmg actlvmes - (5)

- Net change in cash and éasll equivalents - - -

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year : 19. 15

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1 4

20 19

" Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year : 19

Significant non-cash transacﬁons

There were no signiﬁca';t non-cash transactions in 2018 or 2017.-.

The notes on pages 22 to 62 are an integral pért of tl1§ise financial statemellté. A
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- Andina ple
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION - '

The Company (public company limited by shares) is incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in the United
Kingdom with it$ registered office at 1 South Quay, Victoria Quays, Sheffield, United Kingdom, S2 5SY. The principal
activities of the, Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”), and a description of its operations, are set out in the
»Dlrectors Report. . . :

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2. 1 lntroductlon

The Group.was demerged from Andes Energia pic (now “Ph’oenix Global Resources™) with effect from 11 July 2012. :

Al Andma group companies, which were . owned and controlled by Andes Energla plc prior'to the demerger, were transferred
_to tlie new ultimate parent company, Andina Plc. The introduction of the new ultimate parent company constitutes a group
reconstruction. The transactlon fell outside the scope of IFRS 3 “Business Combinations™.

2.2‘Going concern--

The.directors have reviewed the cash position of the Company and the Group as af 31 December 201 8 and for a pericd of 12
months from the date of this report and consider it appropnate that the Company and Group financial statements are prepared
- on the gomg concern basns for the reasons set out below. :

At 31 December 2018, as detailed in note 21, the Company was in default of a US$7 4 mrllron loan having not comphed with
the loans repayment terms and had net current liabilities of $8.2m. . :

On 21 August 2018 the Company recewed a letter from the lender confirming the Company was in default of its loan and
demanding immediate repayment of the full loan amount. The Company does not have sufficient funds to repay the loan or
meet future financial liabilities as they fall due. As a result, the directors of the Company have secured a line of credit for up

. to USS 3.6 miillion, of which US$ 1.0 million has been drawn that covers the full overdue amount and is currently negotratmg
with the existing lender. .

The directors are performing a number of actions to manage the cash flow risk and have a reasonable expectation that they
will be able to renegotiate the terms of the loan based on their previous history with the [ender, including previous .
negotratlons of the loan terms. In the event that the dlrectors are unable to-reach an agreement with the existing lender or
sécure new lines of credit with another third party in order to meet their current ﬁnancral llabllll‘leS they could consider
satisfying the debt through the sale of shares in its subsidiary companies. - :

The directors recognise that these crrcumstances give rise to material uncertainties that may cast- srgmﬂcant doubt on the
Company's and Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, after making enquiries and careful consideration of
the financial alternatives of the Company, including considering the likelihood of either reaching agreement with the existing
lender of the parent company loan, securing new loans, or considering satisfying its'debt through the sale of shares in its
subsidiary companies, the directors have concluded that there is a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing the financial statements, which assumes the realisation of assets and dlscharge of habllmes in the
normal course of business within the foresecable future.

2.3 Basrs of preparatlon

The consolidated and Company ﬂnancral statements have been prepared in accordance wrth International Financial Reportmg
Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (JFRS IC) as adopted by the European
Union and with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to compames reportmg under IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements have been’ prepared under the historic cost convention, except for the net assets and _
results of the Company's operations in Argentina, an economy that is considered hyperinflationary, which are expressed in
- terms of the measuring unit current at the closing date of the reporting period. See Note 2.10. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below. Where a change ‘in the presentation format. between the prior year and current year
ﬁnancral statements has been made during the year, comparatwe figures have been restated accordingly.
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Andina plc

NOTES TO THE F lNANClAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)

24 Critical accounting estumates and judgements

. The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the groups accounting policies.

- Management estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as the disclosure of

contiigent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

period. Actual outcomes could differ from those estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors including expectatlons of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the

‘circumstances.

" Key judgments . )
- Recognition of deferred tax assets
- Control over subsidiaries

Regardmg the situation with CAMMESA and the rest of the Judgments regardmg the future development of the negotlatlons :

- see detail in Note 20,

Key estimates :
- lmpalrment of property, plant and equlpment mtanglble assets and investments

. - End of services benefits ] . . Lo .

" The areas involving a higher degree of Judgement or complexxty, or areas where assumptlons and estlmates are significant to
the ﬁnancxal statements are shared below .

A. Estlmatlons and assumpttons involving the nsk of sxgmﬁcant adjustments to the ﬂgurcs in the fi nancxal statements
' Impa:rment of property, plllllt and eqmpment mtangzblc assets and investments

Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually, taking into account prices prevailing at each reporting date.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are also reviewed for impairment -where there has been an event or
change in circumstance that would indicate that the carrying amount might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
" recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to.sell and value in use. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be
‘obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transactlon

The value in use is determmed using the present value of the future cagh flow expected to be derived from an asset or cash

~ generating unit. The calculation of estimated future cash flows and resndual values is based on managemcnt’s reasonable
estimates and is therefore subjectlve : .

The directors camed out impairment tests of assets at the cash generatmg unit Jevel. See Notes 12 and 2. 17 Addltlonally,

during the year, the Company changed its accountancy pollcy for some assets. See Note 2.5.

End of service beneﬁls
The Group recognises a pl‘ovision for employee end of service benefits that iriclude managemeht’s best estimate of certain
variables which may not ultimately match the amounts actually paid at the end of service. The key assumptions are wage

increases, employee turnover, the mortahty rate and the dlscount rate Past experlence and actuarial tables of mortality are
_ used in making the estimate. : : . 4 :
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Andina ple.
NOTL‘S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued) 7
-~ 2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
: ~2.4 Critical a‘céounting estimates and~judg‘ements (continued) :
B. Crltxcal accountmg Judgments in applymg the sompany s accountmg pohmes .

Recogmtwn of {Ieﬁ.'rred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary differences can be utilised. There remains a risk that future taxable proﬁts are not available to utilise deferred tax

- assets recognised, The extent of future. profits largely depends on the timing and. extent . of tariff mcreases and the -

- announcements for general new regulations in the electricity market. -

_ Control over subsidiaries

Management has evaluated the level of influence and control exercised by the Company on its investment and has determined
that it exercxses control qver them Consequently, it has presented consoltdated financial ﬁgures :

Andma owns 80% of HDS shares, ‘which holds 54% of. HASA (47%.indirect ho[dmg) Andina is able to control the returns of -
the entity through the approval of the entity financial statements, entering into significant contracts, and the ability to make
sngnlﬁcant decisions without other shareholder approval. - .

2.5 Adoptmn of new nnd revised Internatlonal Financial Reporting Standards

Other than as set out below the accountmg pOllCleS have been apphed consnstently to all years presented.

" New aml amended standards adopted by the Group

e IFRS-15- Révenue from contracts with customers The Company adopted IFRS-15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers” as from January 1, 2018, when application of this standard became mandatory. The first step for . °

. applying IFRS-15 was to determine whether or not there is a contract in place and whether or not that contract was
entered into with the customer. The assessment was made based on a portfolio of similar contract (or performance

. obligations). As from adoption of this standard, no significant impact has been-identified. It was not necessary to
make. adjustments to the opening balance sheets, that affected the retained earnings, as the effects identified
represented ‘no changes in the 2017 net prof ts reported prevnously See note 2. 7 for further detail ‘in accounting

policy. o : o ' e

e IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” replaces the pronouncements of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 39,
which deals with recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets arid financial liabilities; the disposal
of financial instruments, the impairment of financial ‘assets and hedge accounting. Adoption- of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments as from January'1, 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies but no significant adjustment arise to
the amounts recorded in the consolidated fthancial statements, however there was an impact in the Company-
explamed in section “Changes in accountmg policies” The new accounting policies are explained in Note 2.18.

. Amendments to lFRS 2 “Share-based Payments" It clanﬂes how to-account be certain share based payment
transactions. This amendment dld not have a material impact on these financial statements.

e IFRSIC22 “Forelgn Currency Transactions and Advance Conmderatton" It deals with exchange rate transactiorts

‘ or transaction sections in which there is a consideration weighed in‘a foreign currency. The interpretation provxdes a

guide for the creation of.one or multiple payments / receipts. It aims at reducing the diversity in the practice. This
standard did not have a material impact on these financialstatements.
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Andina plc
thTES TO Tt{E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
* 2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)
2.5 Adoption of new and revised International Fmancral Reporhng Stand'lrds (contmued)

New standards, amendments and. mtcrpretatrons issued but not effective for the year beginning 1 Jammry 2018 and not
adopted early : . .

" At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, a number of new and revised IFRSs have been issued by the IASB
but. are not yet effective, as listed below. The.directors have performed an.initial review of each of the new and revised

. standards, and based on the Group’s current operations and accounting policies, are of the view that their adoptron will not
_lead to any material change in the Group’s financial reportmg N - :

. Amendment to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” ', Prépayment Features with' Negative Compensation: This .
amendment confirms that, when a financial debt measured at amortized cost without it being cancelled, a profit or
loss must be immediately included in the period results. This amendment was pubhshed in October 2017 and is
effective for periods begrnnmg on or after 1 January 2019. : .

~ e IFRS 16 “Leases™ It removes, for lessees, the distinction between “finance leases", which are registered. in the
- statement of financial position, and "operating leases”, which do not need an acknowledgement of future lease
" payments. In its place, a2 unique model is developed that assimilates the current finance lease. This standard applies
for those financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted if IFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” is also applied. The Group leases some machinery and commercial
space under operating leases. These leases are short-term leases and leases involved insignificant lease payments.
The- Group applied the following procedure: a) performed an inventory of the agreements in effect as of December
31, 2018, b) evaluated the agreements under the decision tree established by IFRS-16 to identify a lease, ¢) applied
exemptions to the agreements considered short-term and of: insignificant value. As the Group’s. activities as lessee
are immaterial; therefore, the Group does not expect them to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
However, some additional disclosures will be required as from its entry into effect.

« IFRSIC23 "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”: This standard specifies how the recognition and folloWing
of measurement requirements from IAS 12 “Income Taxes” are applied when there is uncertainty over income taxes
treatments.. This standard was publrshed in June 2017 and is effectivé for periods beginning on or after | January -
2019. . ‘ o

¢ Amendment to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits™ Thrs amendment requires an entity to apply updated premises to
determine the current operating and financial cost for the rest of the penod after a plan amendment, curtailment, or
settlement occurs and how to account. this effect in the financial year result as part of past rendered services or as
gain / loss in. the' termination. This’ amendment was published in February 2018 and is effective for penods

o begmnmg on-or aﬂer 1 January 2019 : : :

U Amendments to JAS 1 and IAS 8 “Deﬁmtron ‘of Material”™: These amendments to JAS 1 "Presentatlon of Financial
Statements” and IAS 8 “Accoffiting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, and consequent
amendments to other IFRS Standards, clarify the definition of material and its application by: aligning the wording
of the-definition of material across IFRS Standards and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reports; clarifying
the explanation accompanying the definition of material; and including some of the supporting requirements in IAS
1 in the definition of non-relevant information. This amendment was published in October 2018 and is effectlve for
penods begmnmg on or after 1 January 2020. .

Changes in accommmcy polxcy

IS -

Group -Property, pl{mt and equipment - -~ - :.__. .

During the year the Group changed its accountmg policy. for those assets classified as “high-power lines and power
transformers” within property, plant and equipment, which has been applied to all the elements that belong to the same
classification of assets. Prevrously, the Group valued these assets according to the revaluation method.

" In 2018, the Group changed its policy and the accounts for these assets at historical cost The revaluatlon method was
adopted as a measurement parameter for these assets because, even though the criteria for International Accounting Standard
No. 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” (“IAS 29") were not yet reached, there was an inflationary
context during a long period of time in which the properties’ value measured in historical terms caused the financial
information of the Group fail to represent the non-monetary items™ values,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standrprds (continued)

..-Change in accountancy policy - '

Gr oup Property, plant and eqmpment (conlmuefl)

Consndermg that the argentine cconomy was identified as. hypermﬂatlonary 2018 financial year for international fi nancral
reporting standards, and IAS 29 requires the non-monetary amounts under a hyperinflationary economy to be re-expressed

. retrospectively, the cost for using the revaluation method is not justified compared to the cost for employmg the re-translation
" method applied by IAS 29. ‘ :

"According to 1AS 8, this change in.the accounting pohcy has been applied retrospectlvely The nominal amounts reported as
~of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, were the followmg

Impact in consolldated statement af ﬁnancu_zl position

| Restated

T ' As ongmally presented ] Adjustment
A Impact in sectors US$7000

At 31 December 2017 v . .
Property, plant and equipment 179,729 (69,494) 110,235

- | Deferred income tax assets - . -1790]. 18,203 | - 18,993

| Accumulated losses (59,895) 4,289 : (55,-605)
Non-controlling interests 19,879 (22,944) . (3,065)
Revaluation reserve R . 31,666 (31,666) -
At 1 January 2017 , ‘ .
Property, plant and equipment 154,395 (66,580) - 87,815
Deferred income tax assets - 15,883 15,883
Non-controlling interests 26,368 " (21,206) 5,162
Revaluation reserve ) 22,071 . (22,071 -

Impact in consolidated income statement 4
Impac tin sectors As orxgmally presented | Adjustment I Restated
US$°000

At 31 December 2017
Cost of sales ) g (210,284) 5,584 | - " (204,700)
Distributicfi costs <. ol (23,123) 249 (22,874)|

‘| Administrative expenses e (22,287) 110 (22,177)
tCri::s\ fg? ;;Z\rl:luanon of networks and power 20,973 (20,973) _
Eammgs per share (0,18): 0,06 0.12)

As a result, these financial statements have been corrected since 1 January 2017, including an adjustment of results from

prévious financial years. The impact to the current year cannot be identified due to the application of IAS 29.

Company - IFRS 9

previous accounting policy.

" Theésé figures are not impacted by épplicatfdh of [AS 29.
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NOTES TO THE FlNANClAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Wt

2 5 Adoptlon of new and revised Intermtlonal Fmanclal Reportmg Standards (contmucd)

Clmnge in accountancﬁ pohcy (contmued)
' Company - IF RS 9 (contmued)

As a result of the changes in the Company s accounting policies, prior year financial statements had to be restated. As .

' explained below, IFRS 9 was adopted without restating comparative information. The reclassifications and adjustments -
arising from the new 1mpalrment rules are therefore not reflected in the restated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but
are recognized in. the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2018. The following table shows the adjustments recognized for
each individual lirie item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been included: As a result, the subtotals
and totals disclosed. cannot be recalculated from the numbers provided. The- adjustments are explamed in more detall by
standard below.

Impact in statem'ent of financial position

1 January

-Impact in sectors December 2017 . IFRSS . |- mg
o ' US$°000 -
‘| At 31 December 2017 ) ) ) . :
Trade and other receivables . - : 2,705 Loeasy|. o .
Accumulated losses . . (27,777) (2,;705)] . (30,482)

2.6 Basis of cdnsolidation .

The consolidated financial s'ta&;nents'include the financial statements of Andina and its subsidiaries.

‘Subsidiaries are entities «(including special purposé entities) over which the group controls an entity where the group is
exposed to, or has.rights to, variable returns from 1ts involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to dlrect the activitics of the entity.. . :

" The results of subsidiaries acquxred or disposed of during the year are mcluded in the consohdated income statement from the
effecnvc date of acquxsmon or up to the effective date of dnsposal where appropnate
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of sub51dlar1es to bring the accountmg pohmes used into
line -with those-used by the Group. All mtra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on-
. corféohdatlon = as :

- -

. ~"Nor1-controﬂmg lnterests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately ﬁom the Group’s interest therein. Non-
_._controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at thesdate of the original business combination together with the

: non—controllmg interests’ share of profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income since the date of the
combination. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. The non-controlling interest of shareholders in the acquire is mmally measured .
"at their proportion of the net falr value of the assets, liabilities and contmgent IIablllthS recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

- 2"ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Revenue recognition

The Group“adopted IFRS 15: ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ from 1 January 2018. The primary impact of
application is the revision of accounting policies to reflect the five-step approach to revenue recognition required by IFRS 15,

resulting” in insignificant adjustments to amounts prevrously recogmsed in the financial statements. The key changes to "
accountmg policies are descnbed below. .

Revenue relates malnly to electncrty generatron and drstrrbutron services.

- 'Energ lez to busuress and lesrdentml customers

The Group supplres electricity to resrdentlal and business customers in Mendoza, Argentina. The vast ma;onty of contractual

- energy supply arrangements have no fixed duration, require no minimum consumption by the customer and can be terminated

by either party at any time. The Group has determined that no enforceable rights and obligations exist at inception of the ".

‘contract and arise only once the Group is the legal supplier of energy to the customer. The performance obligation is the

supply of energy over the contractual term. The performance obligation is considered to be satisfied as the customer
'consumes based on the units of energy dehvcred This i is the point at which revenue is recogmsed !

In respect of energy supply contracts, the Group considers that it has the rrght to consrderatron from the customer for an

, ., amount that corresponds directly with the value delivered to the customer through their consumption. It is the judgement of-
the Group that the customer consumes energy as the Group supplies and, as a result, the Group recognises revenue for the
. .amount which the entity has a right to invoice. The Group’s assessment of the amount that it has a right to invoice includes an
" assessent of energy supplred to customers between the date of the last meter 1ead1ng and the year end (known as unread

revenue).

-Unread electricity comprises unbilled revenue and is estimated through the billing vs‘ystems, using historical consumption

patterns, on a customer-by-customer basis, taking into account weather patterns, load forecasts and the differences between
actual meter readings being returned and system estimates. Actual meter readings continue to be compared to system :
estrmates between the balance sheet date and the finalisation of the accounts. :

The Group holds a number of energy supply power contracts that specify a minimum consumption volume over a Speciﬁed-
contractual term. The transaction price for these contracts is the minimum supply volume multiplied by the price determined
by EPRE per unit of energy. Revenue from the sale of additional volumes is considered to be variable and not mcluded in the
transaction. prrce Revenue for these contracts continues to be recogmsed as invoiced.

) Enefgz g’enerated

" The Group generates electricity to be sale through the national Wholesale Electncrty Market (MEM) admmlstrated by

CAMMESA and regulated by the’ Secretary of Energy of the Nation (SEN).

) The amount of energy generated is determined by the hourly demand that CAMMESA has and the price is estabhshed by
SEN- There is a single performance obligation, Company recognizes its income based on tlie amounts expected to be

received, orice the performance obligation has been satisfied. -

28



+ =The costs incurred, in relation to the transactlon could be reasonably measured

Other opemtin g income

Andina plc

NOTES TO THE R lNANClAL STATEMDNTS (contmued)

' 2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)

2 7 Revenue recogmnon (contmued)

'Accounlmg pohczes applied until 31 December 2017

, The revenue included the fair value of the consideration recelved or to be received for the prov1510n of the servnce in the

normal course of operations. They were recognized when the following condmons were met;

- The risks and benefits of ownershlp had been transferred
*The amount of income could be reasonably measured .
~ It was likely that future economic benefits flowed to the Group

-~ The. Group did not retain for itself any involvement associated wuh the property nor retained effectwe control of the'

services provided

The Group recognises revenue when the amount can bé measured reliably, it is probable that future economic benefits are

. generated to the entities, collection is reasonably assured and when specific criteria for the operations of the Company-are

met..

or

- Other operatmg income primarily arises from ancnllary services pravided to thnrd parties and is recogmsed at the time the

service is provnded

2.8 Finance income . '

’

Finance income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding an_d the effective interest rate applicable.

. 2.9 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to .the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asséts

 which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the

cost of those assets until the assets are substantially ready for the:r intended use or sale

The commencement date for capitalisation is.when (a) the Group incurs expenditures for the qualifying asset; (b) it incurs
borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are necessary to-prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.10 Foreign currency

" Functional and presentation currency

. Thc individual financial statements of each Group company are mamtmned in the currency of the pr|mary economic
* environment in which it operates (its functional currency), which in the case of the Argentinean companies is the Argentme :

Peso and in the case of the Company is Pounds Sterling. For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, the results
and financial position of each- Group entity are expressed in US Dollars, ‘which is the presentation currency for the
consolidated and Company financial statements, to facilitate comparison with other utility companies.
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Andina plc

NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 ForeignAcurrency (continucd)

. Functwnal and prasentatwn currency (commncd)

The financial statements are presented in US$ and the average rate used was-US$1.31 to £1 and AR$28. 11 to US$1 and the

_closing rate used was US$1.37 to £1.and AR$37.6 to US$1 (2017: average rate US$1 29 to £1 and AR$ 17.26 to US$1 and

closmg rate US$1 35 to £1 and AR$18.60 to US$1)

‘u

Flmctwnal currency of a Izypermﬂtmonm y economy

lAS 29 requlres that the financial statements of an entlty with the. functlonal currency of an 1nﬂat10nary economy must be
-expressed in the. measure unit current at the closing date of the financial year being informed, regardless of whether they are -
- based on the historical cost method or the current cost method. To this effect, in general terms, the inflation produced since
- the acquisition or the revaluation date, accordingly, must be calculated within the non-monetary sectlon Satd requtrements
* also include the comparative in mformatlon of the financial statements g

In order to determine whether an economy is conSIdered as hyperinflationary accordmg to IAS 29 the Standard detalls a
series of elements to be considered which include an accumulated inflation rate in three years that approximates.or exceeds

' the 100%. Hence, accordmg to 1AS 29, the Argentme economy must be consndered as hypermﬂatlonary since 1 July 2018.

. According to- IAS 29 the f’ nancxal statements of an entity that reports in the currency ofa hypermﬂatlonary economy must
_be reported in teris of the measure unit current at the date of the financial statements. All amounts from the statement of
- financial position that are not presented in the measure unit current at the time of presentation must be updated- applying a

general prices index. The components of the income statement must be presented in the updated measure unit to the date of
presentation of the financial statements applying a general prices index from the date the incomes and expenses were
accounted .

The inflation adjustment of initial prices was computed taking .into consideration the indexes established by the FACPCE -

- (Argentine Federation of Professional Councils i in Economic Sciences) basing on the prices mdex publtshed by.the National
'Stat:stncs lnstltute (INDEC). . . .

" The pnce indexes used for restatement of the fmancnal statements were:

Year ’ Index
2018 " 184.2552
2017 : 124.7956
2016 - 100. 0000 ’

- The main procedures to determine the mﬂatlon adjustment are the following:

- All monetary assets and liabilities in the statement of ﬁnanclal position are not adjusted since the ﬂnancxal statements are -

- already re-expressed at the year-end exchange rate.-

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities that were computed at cost prices at the date of the statement of financial posmon and
the capital assets are adjusted based on the corresponding adjustment coefficients.

- All the elements in the income statement are updated applying the relevant conversion factors;

- Gains and losses in purchasing power arising from the net monetary position are recognized in the consohdated statement of

]ncome asa separate line under gain on monetary posmon for US$ 24 863

On the initial adjustment for inflation, the capital asset accounts were adjusted as follows:
- The capital was adjusted since the date of the last adjustiment for inflation accounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) L

*2: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Foreign‘ currency (continuc’d) ’

. Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currenciés) are recorded ‘at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates -&f the transactions. At each

_reporting date; monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determmed Exchange differences arising are mcluded in the income statement for the
period. .

-. Foreign subsidiaries conversion . . S : , S e

The results and financial positions of the Company’s subsidiaries that have a functiona currency differentufrom the
Company's currency are converted to the reporting currency as follows, dependmg on whether the-functional currency is in a

hyperinflationary environment or not. . ) . o

. Enlmes with non—hyperugﬂauonmy functtonal curi rency

- Assets and Ilablhtres from each statement of ﬁnancnal posrtron presented are converted at the exchange rate of the closmg "
date of the statement of financial position.

. - The accounting capital of each statement of financial position presented is converted at the historical exchange rate.
. - Profits and losses from-each -income statement are converted at the yearly average exchange rate (when the average
* . ‘exchange rate does not represent a reasonable approximation to the accumulated effect from- the -transaction rates, the

exchange rate at the date of the transaction or the monthly average are used.) -
- All exchange rate differences arising from this are accounted in the other comprehensive income.
- Gains and losses arising on the re-translation of the opening net assets of the Company at prevarlmg exchange rates are

‘transferred to the translation reserve.

" Subsidiaries w:llz hypeunﬂatzonm v functional curr ency

- Assets, habrlmes and the capltal from the statements of financial pOSlhOl‘l as well as proﬁt and loss from the statement of

~ income, are converted at the exchange rate at the closing date of the statement of financial posmon after being adjusted in

functional currency.

- Assets, liabilities, capltal proﬂts and losses from the comparative period are mamtamed in accordance with the amounts
obtained at the conversion of the previous financial year. Said amounts are not adjusted to the following exchange rates
because the Company presents lts financial information in US dollars, a non-hypermﬂatlonary currency.

Eﬁ’ect on cansohdaled finaicial statements

The initial recognition of hypermﬂatlon in the consolidated financial statements where the presentat‘ion currency is not from a

- hyperinflationary economy, does not require a restatement of the comparative figures; therefore, the difference between the

net assets as at December 2017 for subsidiaries in Argentina and the initial net assets as of 1 January 2018 due the effects of
1AS 29 restating the financial information of said entities was recognised in through other comprehensive income as part of
Translation reserve during 2018. The accumulated effect of the initial application of IAS 29 was US$137 million, as detailed

. in this Note, presented net of US$33 million translation impact of opening balances at the year end exchange rate. The Group

made the accounting election to recognise the adjustment of the net assets included in translation differences.

2. 11 Governmcnt grants

Govemment grants are recogmsed at their fair value when there is reasonable certamty that those grants will be collectcd and
that the Company will meet all the conditions established.

Govemment grants received in relation to the purchase of non-current assets are deducted from the cost of such assets These
assets are depreciated over their estlmated useful lives based on their net acqursltlon cost.
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Andina plc
NOTL‘S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)
. 2 12 Employce beneﬁts

Long term bencfits for years of service

i .:ThlS represents the accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by ‘the collec&vg bargammg agreement for lrght and

power, that have completed twenty, twenty-five, thirty, and thirty-five years of service. This is paid in the form of a special
remuneration equivalent to the morithly salary in the month that the year of service condltlons are met ThlS amount doubles
when the employee reaches forty years of service.’ ’ ST

. Long term benefits for retirement or {lisability

S -

The Gronp operates a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the collective

L bargammg agreement for light and power for staff reachmg retmng age or retmng asa r‘esult of. drsabrht;t prlor to this.

All such employees who have at, least five years of service with the Group are en%rtled‘to this benefit. Employees are paid a
bonus equivalent to ten months ‘of their last monthly salary. This benefit is increased by two percent for each yéar of service
. exceeding the first five years. These benefits are valued according to the actuarial method of the projected wiiit credit. The
_ Group estimates the future outcome of certain variables-that affect the value of the liability, including the rate of inflation,
. salary increases and changes in mortality rates: The amounts calculated are discounted using a discount rate that reflects the
time value of money and the risks specific to the flows considered. The differeénces between the prior year estimates and the
actual charge and changes in. estrmates are classrﬁed as gains and losses with administrative expenses.

. The main assumptlons used in the calculatlon are the dlscount rate and the expected: salary increase.-

The actual rate used to discount the obligations of these benefits was determined using as reference the market yield (at the
end of the reporting period) of the bonds issued by the National Government, The salary increase rate responds to the
‘ hrstorlcal evolutlon of it. o :

The sensitivity of the liability for defined benefit plans to changes in the main actuarial assumptions is as follows:

. Change in actuarial assumption ' Change in liabilitics (USS’OOO)
Real discount rate - Increase / decrease of 1% Decrease of 0.35 / Increase of 0.40

Rate of salary increase E Increase / decrease of 1% Increase of 0.42 / Decrease of 0.36
See more detail in Note 6. | '

| 2.13 Taxation
Cllrrerrt- and deferrerl income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised i in other comprehenswe income or dlrectly in equlty, respectlvely

The current income tax charge is calculated on the bas_ls of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date in the countries where the Company s subsidiaries and associates op'erate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
i8 subject to-interpretation. It establishes provisions where approprlate on the basis of amounts expected to be pald to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability’ method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of -
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is-determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realrsed or the deferred income tax’ llablhty is settled.
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmucd)

2.13 Taxation (continucd)
Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that lt is probable that future taxable proﬁt will be avallable agamst

) _Deferred income tax is provided on te‘mporary differences arising on invesfrﬁ‘ents in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

'Deferred ’income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred incoine tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation ‘authority on either the same taxable entity or drfferent taxab}er ¢ntifies where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis. . .

-

Minimum notional income tax

The Group determines the tax on notional presumed income-by applying the current rate of 1% on the Group's taxable assets

at year-end. The tax on notional presumed income and the income tax complement each other: The Group’s tax obligation for. - ‘

each year will be equal to the higher of these taxes. However, should the tax on notional presumed income exceed income tax
in any given financial year, such excess may be computed as a payment on account of any excess of income tax over the tax
on minimum presumed income that may arise in any of the ten subsequent financial years. The Group recognized the tax on

" notional presumed income earned in previous years as a credit, considering that it will offset future taxable income.

2.14 Share—based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (optxons) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received. in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to-be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted: (i) including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's
share price); (ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and (iii) mcludmg
the 1mpact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requxrement for employees to save)

Non market performance and service conditions are included i in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified’ vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some circumstances, employees may provide services in-advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is estrmated for the purposes of recogmsmg the expense during the period between
service commencement and the grant date. : .

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number. of options that are expected to vest based:
on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income

.statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The

proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal-value) and share
premium. The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the

‘Group is treated as a capital. contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant

date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in:subsidiary undertakings, with a

. corresponding credit to equity in the Company financial statements. The social security contributions payable;in connection

with the grant of the share options is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the charge will be treated as a cash-

_ settled transaction.

2.15 Property, plant and équipment

Property, plant and equipment (except of lﬁgh yoltage networks and power transformers included in "Hi'gh voltage networks -
and power transformers") are shown at cost less subsequcnt depreciation. Costs mclude expendxtures that are dxrectly
attnbutable to the acquisition of the items. .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

2, ACCOUNTING POLlClES (contmued)
2.15 Property, plant and équipment (continued)

During this financial year, EDEMSA modified its accounting policy regarding the Property, plant and equipment valuation
sector for those assets classified as “high-power lines and power transformers”, which has been applied to all the elements
that belong to the same classification of assets. Previously, EDEMSA valuated these assets accordmg to the revaluation
method. Note 2.5. : _._‘

. Sdbsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with..the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and' mamtenance are charged to the mcome statement during the fimancial perlod in

which they are incurred. : . :

Deprecnatlon on assets is ca]culated using the stralght-lme method to allocate the cost. of each asset to 1ts xemdual value over
its. estxmated useful life, as follows: o e T —_ o

..- * Networks and power transformers ' 30 to 50 years
- Buildings and land* . , S 30 to 50 years
.- Machinery and equipment : ) ' up to 25 years
- Transformers S ‘ 30 to 40 years

- Workin progress and other assets* . : 4109 years

- Impairment ** '

] *Land and work-m-progress included within ‘Work in progress and other assets’ are not deprec1ated Other assets includes IT
and communlcatlon equipment, fumlture and other goods. .

- *"‘An asset’s carrymg amount decreased 1mmed|ately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrymg amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.17). Impairment of fix assets has been detalled in a separated column for better
' understanding. -

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comﬁaring proceeds with carrying amount.
2.16 Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at_cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss is recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying Value exceeds i
its recoverable amount. N . . .

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing '
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash ﬂows (cash—generatmg
umts) .

Concession assets
Concession assets acquired are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition. Amortisation is charged on.a straight-line basis.

over the 30 years (EDEMSA) and 50- years (HASA) terms of the concession and is recognised within administrative
expenses. :

- ~2 17 Impairment of assets
Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the
"carrying. amount may. not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recogmsed for the amount by whlch the asset’s carrying

amount exceeds its recoverable amount. See Note 13. o . . ) I

The assessment of long-term asset recoverability requires sxgmﬂcant judgment. As of 31 December 2018, the present value of

_ the future cash flow generated by these assets has been developed and compared with its book value.

This revaluation of the recoverablllty of non-current assets is performed annually or more frequently if there are events or
circumstances that indicate a potential impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FlNANClAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
. 2. ACCOUNTING POL]C]ES (continued)
217 lmpmrment of assets:(continued)
- These cash flow projeetions are based on extrapolated financial budgets using an estimated industry growth rate:

" In relation to the estimations made, the following variables were taken into account: (i) the rate incfeases granted andthe
application of new rate increases according to the current rate regime in accordance with the estimate of rate growth foreseen
by the Group, (ii) demand projections based on demogaphlc growth (iii) the evolution of operating costs, (iv) the effect-of
variables related to inflation and the exchange rate, among others. The Group prepared its projections. with the understandmg -
. that it will reach an agreement in relatlon to its.past due debt with CAMMESA.

The discount rates used are real mterest rates and reflect specific rlsks related to the mdustry and the country in whlch the
Group operates

' The ﬂow of funds was prepared based on estlmates, sensmsmg some vanables rf applrcable

The results of this revaluation of non-current assets- mdlcated the need to record an nnpalrment of its plant, property and
- equipment at yéar end of US$ 17.2 million which has been recorded in the consolidated income statement. Additionally,
- because of the impact of IAS 29, a full impairment: of the distribution intangibles for US$ 6.7 million (as of December 2017),
- has been performed and disclosed in the statement of equity changes as part of hyperinflation impacts.

Based on thrs analysis, the Group consrders that the carrying amount of the remaining assets does not exceed the estimated
value in use in accordance wrth the current economic and technical conditions. - .

‘However the Group is not ina posmon to ensure that the future performance of the premrses used to prepare lts projections
will.be in line with what was estrmated so that they may differ with the estimates made at the date of preparation of these
. financial statements. - . o

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairinent, assets are grouped by busmess segment for. which there are separately rdentrf' able cash flows (cash -generating
unlts) : .

2.18 Financial assets
C[nssiﬁcation
.The Group classifies financial assets into the following categories: o e

*financial assets measured at amortised cost; : ‘ A
*financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensrve mcome and o :
*ﬁnancral assets measured at farr value through proﬁt orloss. =’ S

This classrf cation depends on whether the fmanctal asset is an investment in a debt or-an €quity instrument. In order for a
financial asset to be measured at amomzed cost, the two conditions described below must be met: All other financial assets
are measured at fair value.

Financial assets at amortrzed cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the following conditions are met

- The objective of the Group’s business model is to hold the assets to collect the contractual- cash flows; and .
- The contractual terms grve rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of prmcrpal and mterest on
principal. r

Financial assets at fair value through prof torloss .

If any of the above-detailed conditions is not met, fi nancral assets are measured at fair value through profit or. loss

All mvestments in equity instruments are measured at fair value. For those investments that are not held for trading, the
Group may irrevocably elect at the time of their initial recognition to present the changes in the fair value in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s decision was to recognize the changes in fair value in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlmued)

, 2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
.2.18 Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and derecognition -

Regular-way purchases and sales-of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, being the date on: which the group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have explred or have been transferred and the group has transferred substantlally all-the risks and rewards of

: ownershrp

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost when the objective of the asset is to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Such assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method if the time value of money is significant. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the assets are derecognised or impaired and when interest is recognised using the effective intezest method. This
category of financial assets includes trade and other receivables. ). Interest on assets held at amortised cost is catculated using’
the effective interest method is recognised in the statethent of profit or loss as part of revenue from continuing operations. ’

. Fmanczal assels measured at fair value throug/a other comp; ehensive income .

Fmancral assets are classified and measured at fair value through other comprehenswe income when the objectrve of holding

‘the asset is both to collect contractual cash flows and sell the fmancral assets, and the contractual cash flows represent solely

payments of principal and interest. The Group does not have any financial assets classrf ed in this category.

Financial assets measured at ﬁur value through proﬁt or /oss .

- Financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet the criteria to be
-measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.. Such assets are carried on the balance sheet at

fair. valu¢ with gains or losses recognised in the income statement. Derivatives, other than those designated as effective
hedging instruments, and equity instruments are included in this category (if existed). Interest income from ﬁnancral assets at

. fair value through profit or loss is included in net gains/(losses

Impairment — general

Credit risk arises from the group’s financial assets which are carried at amortised cost and at fair. value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’), including cash and cash equivalents and outstanding recejvables with customers. The
Group assesses at the end of each reporting perrod a financial asset or group of financial assets is 1mpa1red based on the credit
loss model set out in IFRS 9 - : ) C o R

Impairment — assets carried at amortised cost

For loans-and receivables, the group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a

lifetime expected loss allowance. The expected loss rates are-based on historical loss rates, that are adjusted to reflect current

and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the receivables as they

fall due. Loans and receivables are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no

reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the '
group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 120 days past due. impairment losses are

presented as net impairment losses within operatmg proﬁt ‘Subsequent recoveries of amounts prd\'lously written off are

credlted against the same line item. .
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NOTES TO THE FlNANClAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLlCIES (contmued)
. 2.19.In.v_er1torles

Raw materials and consumables are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined usmg the
weighted average cost fétmula method. Classification is performed based on average consumprlon of these assets in recent
years The Group has no history of obsolete or slow moving 1nventory ' : :

2. 20 Trade recelvables

The recelvables ansmg ﬁom services billed to customers but not collected as well as those arising from services rendered but
- unbilled at the closing date of each year are recogmzed at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost usmg the
effective interest rate method. . :

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents .

Cash and cash equrvalents mclude call deposits held with banks and: other short-term ]nghly liquid mvestments wrth orrgmal
maturmes of 3 months or less _ _ ' -

: 222Tradepayable5v' T o AT L .

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, usmg the
- effective interest method.
2.23 Financial liabilities .

Bank loans and other borrowings are mmally recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amomsed cost. -

. 2.24 Finance leases

Finance leases have been treated as financial purchases and stated at present value at the initial transaction date plus accrued
interest at the year end -

2.25 Provisions

_‘Provisions for legal and other claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past-events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the oblrgatron and the amount
- has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recogmsed for future operatmg losses

Provisions are measured at the present-value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure .required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reﬂects current ‘market assessments of
.the time value of money and the increases specrf' c to the liability.

2.26 Share Capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,
. allocated between share capital and share premium. Equity instruments issued by the Company for non-cash consideration .

are recorded at the market value of the equity instrument at the date of issue, net of direct issue costs, allocated between share.
capital and share premium. See Note 26. . : . :

DI, . . N S

2. 27 Public Servrce Qual:ty Penalties

. EDEMSA’s activities are regulated by the - provincial regulator, Ente Provmcral Regulador Eléctrico (“EPRE”) EPRE
regulates rate approval and control and supervision of service, technical product and commercial quality. Failure to comply
with the provisions of the concession and applicable regulations may result in penalties being imposed. EDEMSA has been
" assessed as being in breach of the stage 11 quality standards and is therefore subject to penalties. However, the Group considers
the application of these quality standards should be relaxed due to the economic damage sustained as a result of the continuing
delays in implementing new tariffs. As of the date of these financial statements, this position has not been resolved and the
Group’has included its best estimate of the liabilities associated with the prospective penalties as a provision in these financial
statements. The balance included in provisions at the year end amounted to US$7.6 million (2017: US$16.7 million), and
US$4.1 million (2017: US$5.7 million) to cover the risks associatéd with possibie fines.
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~NOTES TO THE F lNANClAL STATEMBNTS (continued)
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)
2.28 Resmctlons ansmg from the concession contract of EDEMSA

EDEMSA s shares, rights and obligations under the concession contract may not be assngned in whole or part toa tlurd party
without the pnor consent of the Province of Mendoza

R

2.29 Presen"ation.of the assets comprising the hydroelectric contplcx

" The concession operator agrees to use the assigned assets in such a_ manner so as to preserve them from any damage fair
- wear and tear excepted and not to alter the nature, purpose or use of any assets comprising the hydroelectric complex. The
concession operator is forbidden to pledge, mortgage or assign thése assets. Furthermore, the concession operator is
. forbidden to grant the possession of the assets or consent to any third-party event or act that may affect or reduce thelr value
- ‘The concessmn agreement provrdes for certam revocation clauses in the event such non- comphance anses ’

2.30 Consultmg contract

On 14 June 2010, the Board of EDEMSA approved the execution of a consulting contract. In this regard on 30 June 2010,

© the Company signed a contract with MSO Andes Energia Argentina S.A. (the Advisor), for Which the Advisor provided the . -

experience and knowledge that would be convenient or necessary: for the correct management of the Company. This service
.involved different areas of the orgamzatlon . . -

‘Since August 2017, EDEMSA has not received thie services of MSO, however, it maintairied tlie provision for the fees, based
“on the negotiations that were being held. Followly negotiation, at year end there are no transachons, credits or debts between’
MSO and EDEMSA and the contract with the previous operator has been resolved

Tr ench Energy Consulting S.R.L.

On a timely basis, EDEMSA management began to evaluate new available alternatives, negotiating certain.terms and
commercial conditions with a new operator, Trench Energy Consulting S.R. L to which EDEMSA transferred advances on
account of the eventual future contract.

In this regard, on 10 August 2018 EDEMSA recetved a formal offer from Trench Energy Consultmg S.R.L. ("Trench") fora
comprehensive consulting service. Given the interruption of the services of MSO, since August 2017, Trench has been-
providing this service to the Company. Trench is developing commercial activities and receiving, among others, advisory
services from Andes Electricidad S.A., an indirect controlling company- of EDEMSA, as part of a development and
expansion plan :

EDEMSA’s management has accepted all: the terms detailed in this note and others mcluded in the contract and has given a .
“ corresponding’ impact on these financial statements.

3. CONTING'E-NT‘LIABILITIES» .

EDEMSA has received a claim from the Argentine fiscal bureau in respect of a different interprétation of tax assessed in
certain years. On 25 June 2007 the Group received notice from the authorities of its intention to pursue the claim plus interest’
and penalties. In the opinion of EDEMSA’s tax advisors, the criterion used by the Argentine fiscal bureau is not in line with
tax regulation. For this reason the Group has not made a provision for this claim. On 19 July 2007 EDEMSA filed appeals
with the National Tax Court. Tlie Group does not believe an estimate of its financial effect is practlcable and could be
misleading. The matter remains outstandmg as at year end, and the Company’s posmons remains the same based on recent .
tax advxce .
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NOTES . TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) - -

4. OPERATIONAL SEGMENTS -

,IFRS 8 requires operatmg segments to be |dent1f ed on the basis of internal repons that are regularly reviewed by the chlef
operating decision maker, which is considered to be the Board of the Company. In the opinion of the Board the operations of
Andina, comprise two operating segments that is, electricity distribution. and electricity- generatxon -Anoperating segment is
a component of an entity that engages in business activities from-which it may €am revenue and incur expenses and whose

" results are rcgularly reviewed by the Board.

e

" The followmg isan ana1y51s of the Group s revenue and results by operatmg segment The operahons are based in Argentma

2018 - ’ Electnclty Electricity | Other.

* Analysis of revenue and profit: distribution  generation ~ corporate . Total

v : R © US$000 - US$’000° ©  USS’000  US$°000

" Reverue - R o 240,282 < 6326 ° 1,605 248213
":;iinpéirment of property, plant'and. L A : :

: equipment Ce (17,246) = .~ - - (17,246)

" Operating (loss)/profit -~ . .~ - (15902) . .. ..1938 . 457 .. (13,507)

Gain/(Loss) on monetary position . . 25,691 . (828) L. 24,863

- Finance income - . - 45,064 1,507 1,546 48,117

Finance costs . - S ©(25,300) (892) (5020) (31,212

* Profit /(Loss) before income tax o © 29,553 1,725 - (3,017) 28,261

Incoine tax expense - o (8,801) -~ -~ (878)" S - (9,679) -

Profit /(Loss) for the year =~ = : © 20,752 847 . (3,017) 18,582

2017 - , " Electricity . Electricity Other

Analysis of revenue.and prof" it: i distribution ~ generation  corporate - Total -
o ‘ US$000 - USS000 . USS’000 ~ US$000
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)

Revenue S A 239,008 6,062 . - 245,070
Operating (loss)/profit : ‘ (4,371) 1,804 - L (29) 0 (2,596) -
Finance income . 4,788 497 (512) 4,773
Finance costs S . (23,862) (588) - O1n (24,541)
(Loss)/profit before income tax - T (23,445) 1,713" C(632)  (22,364)

. Income tax benefit/(expense) . - i~ .. -+ .. .. 8277 . .. «(608) . (4,557) - 3,112

(Loss)/profit for the year = (15,168) T 1,105 - (5,189)  (19,252)

i
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4.OPERATIONAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Other corporate costs are monitored on an on-going basis and largely relate to finance costs-on financial liabilities.

2018 2017

. : : US$'000 US$'000

- Analysis of total assets:' : E : ~ (Restated)
- Electricity distribution , o R 322,744 246,604
Electricity generation . - 14326 - 7,083

~ Total segment assets : . : 337,070 253,687

Unallocated assets : : S 456 340
Consolidated total assets ' . - : Co 337,526 .. 254,027

_ Analysis of total liabilities: A . : '

Electricity distribution ._ R me ] L 217,971 - 257,540 )

Electricity generation . : e : 5,726 13,439

" Total segment liabilities ' o ‘ - A 223,697, 260,979

Unallocated liabilities h : N v - 18,994 22,277

-~ Consolidated total liabilities : N ‘ S . - 242,691 . 283,256
. 2018 . . 2017

e . R ’ USS'000  US$'000
Analysis of total capital expenditure: ) S " (Restated)
Electricity distribution capital expenditure . = 17,921. 37,401
Electricity generation cdpital expenditure C . - : . - -
Consolidated total capital expenditure- . ' . : - 17,921 37,401
Analysis of total depreciation charged:

‘Impairment of distribution property plan and equibment . o ' 17,246, . -
Electricity distribution depreciation - ’ o © 2,054 ’ 3,753:
Electricity generation depreciation : . ’ : 74 16
Consolidated total depreciation and impairment charged 19,374 -~ 3,769
Analysis of total amortisation charged: . - .

Electricity distribution amortisation .. o L. 127
Electricity generation amortisation ~ . - - e L - 126 66
Consolidated total amortisation charged ~ , ) 4 ' 126 193
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NOTES TO Tl-lE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (contmued)

s OPERATING PROF IT/ (LOSS)

e e . 2018 . 2017
' o US$000  USS$’000
. (Restated) - . .
Thls is stated after chargmg : ’ .
Amortisation ) : ) . 126 193
Depreciation  ~ o ' , 2,128 3,769

An analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:
Audit of the Company s mdmdua] and consolidated financial

statements A 4 C120 185
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries - . ' ~ 130 100
Total audit fees - ' . 250 285
Audit-telated assurance services A : .2 24
Tax and legal compliance services > -~ - - 12 21

‘Total non-audit fees o P ' 14 . .. 45

6. STAI‘F COSTS AND DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
a) Staff numbers and costs

The average monthly number of persons includihg executive directors was:”

2018 2017

No. - .. No. .

Selling . ' o ' 165 164
Technical . ' 426 423
Administration B S 170 168
' ' ) : o 761 ° ] 755

2018 2017

_— . ~ US$000° US$°000 -

Wagesand salanes e y ' 31,105 35,350
Social security costs : o ~ 4415 9,105
Share based payments - S ‘ - - 53

B ' 35520 . . 44,508
Ab‘) Directors’ érﬁoluments “

The directors’ emoluments for services provided to the Company and otherAGroup companies were as follows:

2018 - 2017

. : US$"000 US5000
Aggregate emoluments . . 473, - 962
Emoluments of the highest paid director . 200 380
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NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmucd)
© 6: STAFF COSTS AND DIRBCTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
c) Employee beneﬁts A

Provision has been made for retirement and disability benefits in accordance with note 2 12. There are no plan assets and.
therefore the liability presented is the gross deﬁned benefit llablllty _ .

* Asat 31 December 2018 the fol]owmg provision has been made

. Prt_'),visi_pn for employee benefits Current Non-current Total
T S . -US$'000 US$'000 ~ USS'000
Benefits for retirement/disability A 1,116 3,972 5088 .
. Long term benefits for years of service . 104 - 763 .867
.-Total 31 December 2018 =~ 1,220 . 4735 5,955
Benefits for retirement/disability ' 1,685 " 5646 . 7331
Long term benefits for years of service - 97 1,092 1,189
Total 31 December 2017 o . 1,782 6,738 18,520

_ The following amounts have be‘en'e.xpensed in the income statement during the year:

Charge to theiincome statement .~ - . 2018 2017

A , . _ US$'000  -USS'000
Benefits for retirement/disability « _ - : : 1,132 2,427
Long term benefits for years of service - 227 - 438~

Total . ' 1,359 2,865
The mevement's in previsions made are deteiled below:

* Movement in provisions . . ' ‘ o US$'000  US$'000

Balance as at 1 January 2018. ' ‘ 8,520  .8,108
Service costs B ‘ S 705 1,111
" Interest accued . ‘ . 654 1,158
Actuarial losses e . . : 798 596
Benefits paid ' . . o (2,906) (1,145)
Foreign exchange movement o (1,816) (1,308)

Balance as at 31 December 2018 ' o 5955 - 8,520

7. FINANCE INCOME L :
. 2018 2017

, . _ US$°000  US$°000
" Refi nancmg (Note 20) ' o . 24,170 -
Gains on assets held as fair value through proﬁt 12,196 2,633
- Interest income. ) . ' . ‘ 11,751 © 2,140
: : ‘ 48,117 4,773
8. FINANCE COSTS _
T ' 2018 - 2017
o - : . , US$°000  US$000
Commercial interest : L : . 20,597 ) 20,197
Interestcosts = . - o © 10,615 4344
‘ ‘ ' ' 31,212 24,541 -
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9. TAXATION (CHARGE) / CREDlT o .
2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000
' " (Restated).
Income tax relatmg to profit/ (loss) for the year 4 ‘ T _
Current tax : . o 951) . (541)
... Defetred taxation (including tax rate dnfference) L (8,728) . 3,653
Income tax (charge) / credlt K - : (9,679) 3 112

The tax on the Group s income / (loss) before tax dlffCI’S from the theoretlcal amount that would anse usmg the weighted
" . average tax rate applxcable to proﬁts of the consolidated éntities as follows. :

2018 2017

US$000 -~ US$000
' o . . ~ (Restated)
Profit/ (Ioss) before taxation .o . . 28,261 (22,364)
" Income-tax charge / (credit) on profit / (loss) at standard rate of 30% : _ -
. (2017:35%) ‘ . ' (8,478) v 1,827
- Effeets of: o . ] .
Other differences . ’ : : o (29). (4,516)
~ Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised . o - (160) o (199)
Hypermﬂatlon impact ’ o ) N C o (1,012) ’ -
Income tax (charge) / benefit , ' ‘ - {9,679) . 3,112
Income tax relating to comprehensive loss fo: the year _ ) :
Deferred income tax — Tax rate difference * . : (40) © o (60)
Deferred income tax— Employee benefits . I 240 209
Income tax benefit /-(loss) . . . 200 149
. Loss on comprehensive income before tax T . . (798) (595)
Income tax credit on profit at standard rate of 30% (2017: 35%) ‘ 240 209
’ AEffects of: : : ‘
Deferred taxation — Tax rate difference o - o (400 (60)
Income tax benefit /(loss) - ' ‘ 200 149

“The tax rate used for the 2018 and 2017 for -current tax is the corporate tax rate of 30% and 35%, respectively, payable by
corporate entities in Argentina on taxable profits under tax law in that Jurxsdlctlon On 29. December 2018 Law 27, 430 was
enacted Tlns law made some modlﬁcatlons to prevrous income tax law . .

.. Tax Rate: the modlﬁcatlon states new tax rate parameters. For 2018 and 2019 the tax rate will be 30%, and from 2020
it will be 25%.

o Effect on deferred tax: for the accountlng calculation of the deferred tax, the rate expected to'be in force at the time of ‘
the reversal of the original asset or liability should be used. Therefore, when measuring assets and liabilities for
deferred taxes, the 30% rate should be used for those temporary differences whose reversal is expected to occur in the
"years beginning before 1 January 2020, and the 25% for the remaining temporary differences.

e Additional tax on distributed earnings: this modification increases the aggregated tax rate to approximately 35%

" (2017: 0%, 2018/19: 7%, 2020: 13%) for the shareholders. It must be paid at thetime proﬁts are distributed and paid
as a higher current tax on behalf of the shareholders

The Group is liable to pay a minimum notional incoime tax at the applicable tax rate (1%), calculated on the amount of'
computable assets at the closing of the financial year. This tax is supplementary to income tax and the Group’s tax liability in
each financial year will be the higher of the minimum notional income tax and the income tax for the year. If the minimum
notional income tax for a given financial year exceeds the amount of income tax, such excess may be carried forward as a

partial payment of income tax for any of the-ten followmg financial years -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
10, EARNINGS PER SHARE

- Basic eammgs per share is calculated by dividing the net prof it / loss for the year atmbutable to ordinary shareholders of the .
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, The baS|c and dlluted earnings /
loss per share are the same as there are no mstruments that have a dilutive effect on losses. :

2018 - 2017

S o "Cents . - Cents
, _— I , o ’ - (Restated)
Basic and diluted loss per share -~ -~ . . o : 008 (0.12)
: S : Co - US$'000  US$'000
Profit / (Loss) for the financial year attributable to owners of the parent ) 7,918 (11,927)
" No. " Ne.
‘ ' . ‘ '000 000 -
Weighted average number of shares - . . D ) o 96,156 96,156
Diluted weighted average number of shares . - : 96,156 - 96,156
Potential nufhber of dilutive warrants - . ‘ : 2,158 - . 9982

"The warranté are'déemed non—di]ufivc and immaterial for the burposés ‘of this calculation.
- 11. PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Company has ‘taken advantage of the exemption allowed under sectlon 408 of the Compames Act 2006 and has not
included its own income statement and statement of comprehensxve income in these ﬁnancna[ statements.



Andina plc .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmucd)

12. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

L . Networks. .« - ... - . :
. o and power .. - Machinery: Coe Work in -
. . . _ transformers | - Buildingsand. | and progress and
GROUP ~ ~ stations . fand cquipment  Transformers other assets Total
: US$'000 US$'000 - - USS$'000- US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Cost . R - -

* At 31 December 2016 ' 131,288 13,845 " 6,505 - ‘10,908 . '34,806 , 197,352
Revaludtion 2016 (Note 2.5) {66,580) : - - . - Cs (66,580)
At 1 January 2017 (Rcstatcd) . . 64,708 . 13,845 6,505 10,908 34,806 130,772
Transfers’ 21,788 5,584 934 1,615 (29,921) -
Additions . ' 147 . . - 63 . - 37,191 37,401
Disposals . 2n ’ - 0 : - R | 21)
Foreign exchange movemcms - (6,494) (2,428) (1,022) (1,710) . {(5,606) (17,260)
At 31 December 2017 (Restated) 80,128 | - 17,001 6,480 10,813 . 36,470 . 150,892 -
Transfers 2,822 : - 383 : 425 . (3,630) . -
Additions - 301 28 L, 17,592 17,921
Disposals ' - - S - -24 ’ 29
Hyperinflation udjuslmems(") 237,307 21,106 20560 . 28,255 28,015 335,243
Foreign exchange movements ~(40,758) (8,583) (3,250) (5,459) (18.454) (76,504)
At 31 December 2018 279,499 29,825 - 24201 34,034 59,969 427,528

preciation ) . - . o
At January 2017 (Restated), (28,887) ’ (1,756) 4,210) - (3,688) o (4,416) (42,957
Charge for the year (1,854) T (744) (247) (350) - (574) (3,769)
Forcign exchange movements 3,880 31 632 564 682 16,069
At 31 December 2017 (Restated) ~(26,861) . T (2,189) (3,825, . (3,474) 4,308)  (40,657)
Charge for the year - (1,018) (363) (120) - - (178) (449) (2,128)
Hyperinflation adjustiment(*) (131,233) (6 07.7) (17,020) . (15,666) (14 777) (184,723)

- Impainment " (15,395) , - - 1,851) (17,246)
Foreign cxchange movements ) 13,794 1 055 1911 1,754 . -2, 242 20,756
At 31 December 2018 ) (160,713) (7,524) ° (19,054) (19,415) (17,292) (223,998)

- Net Book Value : . )

At 31 December 2018 , 118,796 . 22301 5,147 14,619 42,677 203,530
At 31 December 2017 (Restated) ) 53267 . 14,812 . 2,655 7,339 - 32,162 110,235

Under the contracts by which the Group’s electricity generation and distribution assets were acquired and are regulated, there are
restrictions on use of the assets and also obligations to maintain relevant assets with the intention of protecting the services they

" provide. In addition, the Group cannot pledge relevant assets as security for borrowings, other than for borrowings incurred to fund
the acquisition of such assets. .

“*Machinery and equipment mcludes assets held under finance leases for US$ 000 1,007 (2017: US$ 000 1,995).
(*) Includes the effect of initial applxcanon-pf IAS 29 and 2018 lmpact. See note 2.10 for more detail.

The recoverable amount of .these. assets is determined based on value-m-use calculations considering each one of the cash -
generated units (CGU) based on the main segments. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets,
adapted to cover.a five year period. Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate
" “of 1%, which the Directors belicve reflects economic growth in the Province of Mendoza. The cash flows include estimates *
of tariff increases, gross and net margins, growth rates and discount rates. Management determines the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectations for market development. The weighted average growth rates are consistent
with the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates used (2018 and 2017) are real interest rates, pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the industry and the country of operation. Management re-evaluated the assumptions
underlying the cash flow projections and the recoverable amount under different scenarios. Whilst, all scenarios proeduced
-consistent values;, it should be noted that since negotxatlons are still in process, the final outcome may differ from the
assumptions used.

Impairment charge

The recoverable amount of the dlsmbutlon CGU is below the carrymg amount of the CGU at 31 December 2019 by
US$ 17,246 (2017 nil).
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" 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
. Impact of possible changes in key as&ztmption&

If the tariff used for 2019, in the value-in-use calculation for the distribution CGU had been 20% lower than management’s
estimates at 31 December 2018, the group would have had to recognise an impairment against the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of additional US$ 40 million, while if it had been 20% higher, the company would recover the

" full amount impaired including the intangible assets.. If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of this

CGU had been-20% higher than management’s estimates, the group would have had to recognise an impairment against
property, plant and equipment of addmonal US$ 42 million.- :

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS -

v GROUP. o . : Goodwill  Concession Total
; - o . US$'000 - US$'000° - USS$'000
- Cost ' . ' .
At 1 January 2017 : 14,468 - 7,709 . 12,177
Foreign exchange movements e e (652) - .« (1,125) ., (1,777)
At31 December 2017 .. R 3816 6,584 - 10,400
. Hyperinflation adjustments(*) - . Cow : (1,889 12,792 10,903
. Foreign exchange movements - - o= L (1927 . - (3,324) (5,251)
" At 31 December 2018 , : T ' - 16052 . 16,052
" Accumulated Amortisation. o .
_ At 1 January 2017 oo : . L. (4,125) "(4,125)
Charge for the year : AR - - {193) ©(193)
Foreign exchange movements : ) - 616 616
" At 31 December 2017 R R (3,702). . "~ (3,702)
Charge for the year , ' - . (126) ©(126)
- Hyperinflation adjustmerits (*) ; B (5,354) - (5354)
Foreign exchange movements . : . - 1,901 1,901
At 31 December 2018 - v o : - (7,281) .-(7,281)
i . Net Book Value' . , 4 -
At 31 December 2018 - ) - 8,771 8,771

~ At31 December 2017 ' L 3816 2882 G698

* (*).Includes the initial effects of IAS 29 which includes an impairment for the Goodwill and Concession assets of EDEMSA to nil based on
the analysis perform by the Group lakmg into account restatement balances and comparing them to prewous year récoverable amounts. See
Note 2.10.

‘ Accumulated Amortisation

" The émor;isa‘tionvcharge for‘thc year is included in the costs of salés ling in the income statement.
GT)odwiIl . J .

‘Goodwill arose on the acqulsxtxon of the electricity distribution business in the Province of Mendoza in 1998 by EDEMSA.

The recoverable amount .of this asset is determined. based on value-in-use calculations followmg the same procedures and
assumptions as detailed in Note 12
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- 13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) -

Concession assets

The concession assets represent the amount paid to acquire the concessions and are. valued at.cost. less accumulated -

-depreciation. The Group considers that the book value of these assets does not exceed the estimated value in use under
-present economic and technical conditions, which were estimated in the context of the current regulatory position in the
- electricity market mentioned in the previous paragraph, except of the distribution assets, ‘which has been impaired at nil.

Intangibles related to distribution business had been dully impaired based on the analysis perform by the Group taking into
account restatemert balances and comparing them to previous year recoverable amounts. This effect has been included as

' part of the initial effect of IAS.29.

2018 " - " Distribution Generation~  Total
, —_— US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
Net book value ' - 8,771 8,771 -
, N ‘ Years . Years
' Remaining life - o 10 26
N 2017 . ‘ Distribution Generation. . Total
o 4 USS'000  USS'000  USS'000
Net book value . L 3,816 - 2,882 6,698
Years  Years

Rémaining life o . e 27

Under a 1998 concession agreement, SODEMSA was awarded an exclusive right to distribute‘eleetrieity in the Province of

"Mendoza. The concession agreement is 30 years divided into three management periods.of 10 years each. Under a 1994
‘concession agreement, HASA was awarded a 50 year concess:on to operate the Ameghino hydro power generating plant

located in the Province of Chubut. -
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14. DEFERRED TAX "~

S GROUP...*

* Deferred tax asset
At 1 January 2017 (Restated)
-2~ (Charged)/credited to the profit and loss.-
-. gccount (including rate difference)

(Charged)/credited to (he employce benefits ..

Foreign exchange movement
‘At31 December 2017 (Restated)
Initial byperinflation cftect L
.(Charged)/credited to the profit and loss
. account.

(Charged)/credited o the emplayee benefits '

Minimal notional tax paid
Foreign cxchange movement
At 31 December 2018

Deferred tax liability
At 1 January 2017 (Restated)
Charged to the profit and loss account
Foreign exchange movement
At 31 December 2017 (Restated)
_ Initial hyperinflation cffect .
o Chargcd to the profit and loss uccount
. Foreign exchange movement
At 31 Dccember 2018

Net deferred income tax lihbility as at 31 December 2018

Net deferred income tax asset as at 31 December 2017

* In addition fo the net deferred income tax liability of US$28m, the Group has recognized a non-offsctting deferred income ' tax asset of USS 0.04m.
**During 2017, in addition. o thie net deferred income tax assct of US$19.5m, the Group recognized a deferred income tax liability of US$ 4.6m in relation

to undlslnbulcd carnings.

) . Notional : Carry
Provision for income Provision Employee . forward
bad debts -tax charges * benefits Other losses Total
US$'000 - . US$'000 US5'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000
730 1 4,738 9,260 2,837 GO5 2,529 . 20,699
11 (330) 2,553 - (314) - (210) . 4,341 6,051
- T - 149 - . - 149
(107) (630) (1,539 (402) (73)° (688) (3.439)
634 3,778 - 10,274 2,270 322 6,182 .23,460
302 - 7,961 1,081 -309 - (368) 9,285
42) - (9,482) (435) (183) 2,532 (7,610)
! . . " 1200 - - 200
- 1,314 - - - . - 1,314
(472) (1.907) (10,896) (1.692) (320) (2,948)  (18,235)
C 422 3,185 (2,143) 1,424 128 . 5,398 3414
- Write off
Property from .
plantand ~ intangible
cquipment asscts Borrowings Total
US$'000 US$'000 . US$'000  US$'000
3,338 565 913 4316
2,694 . (85) 1) 2,398
(2,701) (76) 30 (2,747) _
3,331 404 732 4,467
72,424 (1,677) (1,742) " 69,005
304 ‘243 71 - 1,118
(39,588) ' 643 803  (38,142)
36,971 (388) (135) 36,448
(28,034)*
18,993+*

Minimum notional income tax is payable in Argentina and is supplementary to income tax. At the year end the Group
determines the amount of minimum notional income tax due at the applicable tax rate and its tax liability is the higher of the
minimum notional tax and the income tax due. However, if the minimum notional income tax for a given year exceeds the . -
amount of income tax, such excess may be carried forward against future income tax liabilities for a maximum of ten years.

The minimum notronal income tax is included as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it |&probable that taxable prof' ts will
. be available against wlnch the minimum notional income tax can be utilised.

In the Group, losses in respect of which deferred tax assets have been recogmsed wr]l expire between 2019 and 2022,
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. 15, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLBS. . . '
The Group ) The Company

" 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17  31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17

US$'600 - USS$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Non-current . ST ‘ . )
Trade receivables (? o . 94 1,950 - s

Other debtors | - RO 51 © 673 - -
- 145 2,623 - -

Current: . o o .
Trade receivables -~ . . S 17,075 17,591 100 . 100
Less: provision for impairment .. (2,240) (2,589) .. - S -
Co : . , 14,835 . 15,002 100 100
Preoeyments_ and accrued income ‘ . 18,658 32,580 . - . -
" Advance to suppliers ‘ 10,682 14,355 -
Loans to subsidiaries S : T - 2,569 2,705
Other taxes and social security =~ . - T 6,469 3,421 - -
Grants - Y] 8 - - -
Other receivables =~ . . 6,750° 7373 el e R
-Les provision for impairment (*¥) - ' - - (2,569) -
: 57,441 72,819 100 2,805

' Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30°to 90 day term. Due to their short maturities, the fair value -
of trade receivables approximates to their book value, The dlrectors consider that the carrymg amount of other receivables
approximates to therr fair value. .

® The energy and capacity of HASA is sold in the Argentine wholesale market through transactions administrated by
CAMMESA. However, the lack of determination of a uniform price by the Argentine Energy Secretariat led there to being
insufficient funds to finance the wholesale market, resulting in the creation of the Fund for the. Necessary Investments to
allow for the Increase of Electric Power Supply in the Argentine' Wholesale Electric Power Market (“FONINVEMEM”) In "~
prevnous years CAMMESA strpulated how these debts should be cancelled. )

{(**) The Company has a loan with it’s fully ‘controlled subsrdlary Based on management analysis it will not be collected
from the subsidiary in the short'term and Directors are analysing the capitalisation of this amount durmg 2019 As the
submdrary has not liquid funds or means of guaranty capital, the balance has been 1mpa1red to'nil, -

Agr cement with Phocnix Global Resources Plc G; oup (“PGR Group”) '

On 12 September 2018, Phoenix Global Resources Pl¢ (former Andes Energla Plc) sent an offer letter to the Group with the

- aim of dismissing and dropping all past, present, future or potential claims among the’ companies which may derive from

current contracts. The offer mentionéd debit and credit balances possessed by the Companies of the PGR Group with the
Group as a whole. .

Subsequently, after new negotiations and revisions of balances and transactions that had been maintained in the past, PGR,

Grecoil y Cia S.A: and MSO Andes Energia Argentina S.A. sent a new offer letter on 27 November 2018.in which it was
agreed that USS. 935 (in thousands) was owed to the Group }
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" 15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) - .
The Croup A - The Company '

31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17. 31-Dec-18  31-Dee-17 -
- US$'000 US$'000 USS$'000 'US,S'Q:Q‘O

_Provision for impairment of trade reccivables

As at | January ST 2,589 2,031 ©2,569 . I
~ Impairment losses recognised on receivables - 534 922 S -
_..-Foreign excharige movements : - T - (883) (364) - - -

. .Asat31December C 2240 2,580 2569 . . -

Asat 31 December 2018 Us$2.2 mnlhon trade recelvables were lmpalred (2017 US$2 6 million)., No addmonal detalls have
) becn dlsclosed smce the provxslon is immaterial. . .

16. INVENTORIES h o |
T - 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17
- US$'000  US$'000

Non-current

Raw materials and consumables .. =~ _ 3,095 3,863
o : 3,095 3,863

B i':'Current S o " ' .' , ‘
. Raw materials and consumables - : 13,696 . 4,586

3,696 _4,586.

As at 31 December 2018, US$3 4 million of inventory was transferred to property, plant and- equnpment (2017 US$6. 5
million); US$3.8 million was transferred to expenses (2017: U$S0.4 million) and included jn “Cost of Sales’. Inventory has
been classified as current and nori-current to more accurately reﬂect the period of consumphon No mventory was written off
in the year. .

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS - O g
The Group The Company
31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
US$'000 - US§'000 US$'000  US$'000 .

Current assets

~ Loans to other entities .- " 66 ' - o -
Other investments ' 12,557 6,786 . - A'-A -
Listed government bonds ' 25,908 22,252 - ' -
o s 38465 29,104 - -

Other mvestments ‘
Other investments are carried at fair value through profit or loss, which is management’s best estimate of their fair value

(Level 2). These financial assets includes mainly trust and common funds and foreign currency for investments.
" Listed bonds

Listed bonds comprehends mainly national government bonds from Argentma (Bonar X). These financial assets were valued
" - based on quoted prices at the year end (Level 1)
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
2018 2017
. UsS$'000 - USS'000
‘Non-current assets. )

Asat 1 January ' o -34437 31,377 -

Foreign exchange movements ‘ '(2,039) 3,060
" Asat3l December _ . 32,398 34,437

The directors consider the carrying value-of i mvestmcnts is supportable based on the value in use of the assets m HASA and ‘

- EDEMSA.

At 31 December 2018 the Company had the following subsidiary undertakings. They have the same year-end date as the

intermediate subsidiaries, which are wholly owned.

.Company and have been included in the consolidated financial statements. The Company’s subsidiary undertakings all-
_have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares. All the interests are held partly directly and partly indirectly tllough

See operatxonal segment note 4, whxch provxdes a summary of the fmancxal
(EDEMSA) and electncnty generation (HASA).

™ EDEMSA s financial statements are available at www.cnv:gov.ar

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

p Country of  Arcaof i Owriership
' Reglg(cred office incorporation Opcration Activity Coptrol f;ucrcst
. N 0
Andina Electricidad Limited T gouh Quay, Victoria Quays, Shefleld T g UK Holding = - Dircct 100
 Andes Electricidad SA. g‘jéf‘gslifrze: Floor, Ciudid A‘“é""’f“‘ de Argentina Adgentina Holding Dircct . 100
lplvcrsom .ﬁ,n dina de Electricidad 5.A. Belgrano 815 - Mendoza - - : Argenlina Argentina | Holding Indirect 100
(“IADESA") : - . ]
.Mendinvert S.A. . Co ‘Bclgrano 815.- Mendoza . Argentina Argcnlinn ) Holding Indirect " 100
© SODEMSA o o Belgrano 815 - Mendoza . . Argentina. Argenlinn ’ »l-loldiﬁg ' Indircet’ 100
* Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad de ) ' . ' N . . et it At e i
Mcndoza S.A. (“EDEMSA”) (*) Belgrano 815 - Mendoza Argentina Argt':nlma Electricity dlsﬁnbuuon . Indirect 51
- (U] el y 2 . . . .
Hidrocléctrica del Sur S.A. (HDS") oz Tedin N _“7-28 Cludad Awnomade  precnting  Argentina Holding  Indirest 80
Hidroclectrica Amcghirio S.A. (“HASA™) Sarmicnto 698- Trelew- Chubut 4 Argentina  Argentina  Electricity generation Indirect: 47

information for electricity distribution

The Company

The Group °
31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17 - 31-De¢-18  31-Dec-17
' : . USS'000 - US$'000 - . US$'000 ~ USS$'000
.Cash at bank and in hand v 5,943 4,704 20 19
Shortterm deposits - - 16,398 .. 402 - -
' ' ’ 22,341 5,106 20 19

The directors consider that the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current o
Trade payables -
Social security and other taxes

- Accrued expenses -
Government payables related to compensatlon funds
Other payables .
Other payables from subsidiaries

... Nonscurrent. . .

Trade payables - _
“Pension benefits and other social security
Other payables -

- ‘Company

~ Non-current other payables 1nclude US$ 0.3 million due to subsidiary of the Company

' GI oup -

Current other payables include mainly an amount of US$ 4.2 million due to the Chalrman of the Company, a party connected
to the Chairman, a party connected to a shareholder of the Company and companies to which these parties are related.
Although at year end this debt is set as current the Company has recelved a commltmcnt to defer repayment for US§ 4.1

' million untll March 2021.

Non-current other payables include an amount of US$ 1.6 million due to a shareho]der of the Company and Companres, to

whlch this party is related, repayable by March 2021.

%

The Group

The Company ‘

31-Dec-18°

-31-Dec-17 . 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

. US$'000  US$'000 . US$'000  US$'000
101,538 127,839 . - 165 135
19,600 25,852 R
14,351 67,064 743 644
2,463 2,151 e
4,636 1,422 - 14

- = - 363
142,588 224,328 - 908 - 1,256
41,292 - 3,280 o
5131 . 8315 - -
1,581 - 5,603 300 -
48,004 14,418 2,589 -

. The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.

©20.1 Status of EDEMSA tariff review and settlement of CAMMESA payable

In Argentina, power generators sell their electrrcrty on the wholesale market operated by CAMMESA who administer the
wholesale electricity market, lncludmg the operation and dispatch of generation and price calculation; and the administration
of the commercial transactions in the electricity markets. While the Argentine power sector is déregulated, the Energy

Secretariat has veto power over CAMMESA and has the ability to alter the- functronmg of the competmve market

- Thé revenues of the Groups prmcrpal trading subsidiary, EDEMSA, are subject to a regulated tanﬂ‘ regrme set by the

Province of Mendoza, which under its concession agreement is revised on a specified penodrc basis. .

- An electricity tariff review for the Province of Mendoza was scheduled to occurin 2013 (fourth tariff period) but it was not
implemented at that time. As a result, during 2013 — 2016, EDEMSA did not receive the appropriate electricity tariff and was -
unable to fund its operating costs and capital expenditure requirements for some time. The Company managed this srtuatron

from late 2012 by not paying its principal suppller CAMMESA the state owned electricity wholesaler

In December 2015 the province of Mendoza approved decree No. 2573/15. This put into effect.a new tariff schedule, -
effective from 1 March 2016. From that date the Company has received the tariff as agreed. On February 8,-2017, Ente
Provincial Regulador Eléctrico (“EPRE™) put forward Resolution No. 5/17. This resolution started of the tariff review process

corresponding to the 5th Rate Period, whrch will begin on 1 August 2018 and end on 31 July 2023,

~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
- 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (contmued)
- " 20.1 Status of EDEMSA tariff review and settlement of CAMMDSA payable (contmued)

Decree No. 1238/18 published on '] August 2018 determines and enforces the new tariff schedules for the 5th Rate Period,
without variation with respect to those in effect as of 31 July 2018. EDEMSA challenged said decree and requested EPRE to
"modify the tariffs approved for the Sth. Rate Period for the correct determination and adaptatron of the VAD, note that it is
pending answer. -

On 19 October 2018, EPRE was requested to activate the VAD adaptation procedure envrsaged in Decree No. 48/17 in
accordance with Decree No. 2573/15. Through Resolution 54/19, EPRE convened the Public Hearing held on April 5, 2019
~ in order to consider the .adequacy of the VAD of the electricity distributors of Mendoza. In the same, the distributors
presented their proposals for adaptation of the VAD and the Regulatory Entity explained its calculation of readjustment that
concluded in an increase for the period beginning on February 1, 2019 This increase became' effective as of July 3, 2019.

’ 'Paym ent plan agreed

- During recent years, and particularly since the enactment of Resolution of Ministerio de Energia y Mineria (“MEyM”) -
No. 6/2016, EDEMSA has been negotiating a feasible payment. plan-with CAMMESA. .On..7Z March 2018, EDEMSA

" presented CAMMESA with an irrevocable offer to pay the debt owed for outstanding balances of invoices due between 9

May 2012 and 31 January 2016. This payment plan was formally accepted by CAMMESA on 8 March 2018. '

- The payment plan includes a reduction in the amount of late interest payables, a grace period from 1 February 2016 a term of
90 monthly instalments with maturities between April 2018 and-September 2025 and a fixed annual interest rate of 10%, _
based on this situationthe Group recognised a gain of US$ 24.2 million and disclose the debt in current (US$ 28.1 million)
- and non current (US$ 41.3 million). based on the due date of each instaliments. e :

- As of 31 December 2018, there has been no delay in the payment of the mstalments

Settlement of CAMMESA paynble umle: Ar tlcle 1 5

On 21 December. 2016, Law 27.341 was: published (Natronal Budget 2017) Amcle 15 of tlns law established the
compensation terms for the debt which distributors have with CAMMESA in relation to the purchase of energy. Under this
law, a company is able to net off the income not received during the 2013 — 2016 period up to the amount payable to
CAMMESA. If the ‘receivable’ owed to the company is higher than the liability owed to CAMMESA, the company will not
receive an additional amount. As the income not received by EDEMSA is higher than the debt with CAMMESA, the impact
will be to fully discharge the CAMMESA liability. We note that management have agreed a payment plan with CAMMESA
post year end despite Article 15 on the basis that the terms are good from a cash flow perspective and the fact that they are.
operating in Argentina where it might take some time for laws to be implemented and'acted upon. Although a payment plan
was agreed, the Company did not relmqulsh their nght to claim the Article 15 credlt :

EDEMSA and the Publlc Servrces Secretary of Mendoza had a meetmg on 27 March 2017 at whrch they commrtted to
jointly work with the appropriate intervention of the EPRE so-that the Energy Secretariat of-the Nation and / or the
corresponding national authorities could proceed with the implementation of Article 15.-

" On October 27,2017, EDEMSA filed a formal complaint to the Energy Secretariat of the Nation to request the application of
the aforementioned article. No response has been received regarding this claim as of the date of issuance of these financial -
statements. : o 4

Status as of 31 December 2018

As of 31 December 2018, EDEMSA dxd not pay current liabilities ‘to’ CAMMESA for the amounts due from July to
- December 2018 totallmg US$ 62.8 (including interest).

The Company has requested CAMMESA to negotiate a. payment plan for the debt mentioned in the previous paragraph,

compatible with the new market conditions and considering that the company operates in a hyperinflationary country, which
impacts by increasing operating costs with the passage of time.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (contmued)
o 20 1 Status of EDEMSA tarlff review and settlement of CAMMESA p‘ly'lble (contmued)

- Possible cffecls '

The payment plan in force for payments due from 9 May 2012 to 31 January 2016 establishes that the lack of payment
corresponding to-any of instalment and / or the lack of total payment of the billing that monthly has the obligation to cancel
- EDEMSA for its purchases of energy and power and / or by any other concept in the Wholesale Electricity Market, whose
maturities operate during the term of the plan, if EDEMSA does not remedy the breach within a period of 5 working days
after having been formally notified (written document) by CAMMESA, it will cause the immediate and automatic expiration
of the payment plan. If this situation (notlﬁcatlon) take place, CAMMESA: could be entitled to clalm the full payment of the
' overdue balances. .

In-August 2018, EDEMSA initiated a negohatlon process and requested a fair payment plan with CAMMESA for the
amounts due from July to December 2018 to be in line with the new market conditions (hypermﬂanonary economy), which
have increased current operating costs and deteriorated the value of the amounts charged to customers. Negotiations are
. currently ongoing and.all payments to the suppller have been paxd as they become due (exclusive of amounts due from July
to December 2018) '

‘Management has analysed this situation with its internal legal, accounting and financial advisors and the different impacts in
_ order to evaluate the strategy to be followed. Legal -advisors stated that the Company has ot received a formal notification
from CAMMESA, nor any of the communications received from CAMMESA to date imply a reliable communication of the
enforceability of the payment and that is an evidence that they could reach a consensus on this regard. For this reason to date,
not having received. notice of payment, the beginning of the period of 5 days to regularize the overdue debt has not been -
initiated. The Company estimated that even in the case that a notification could be received in the future for the payment of
the corrent due debt, the Company has a structure and different financial alternatives that would allow it to avoid the
expiration of the plan meéntioned in the first point of this section. For this reason, Andina financial statements include the -
general debt with the creditor in accordance with the conditions existing to date, considering that the‘Company believes that
the negotiations wxll conclude with a payment plan in line with the new economic and financial reality of the market.

Gener al conclusions

Management with.its legal and financial advisors have analysed the S|tuatxon described and its nnpact on the devclopment of

" future operations. From the analysis carried out, it is concluded that the current status of the different channels under
negotiation guarantees the normal development of the business, given that: i) the Company has informed that different
payment plan alternatives are being negotiated, including a cash portion and the balance in instalments, ii) there is a financial
possibility to attend in a timely manner the eventual claim of CAMMESA, iii) the creditor has not initiated compulsory
collection actions during the current renegotiation process, iv) the Company has a right originating in article 15 of Law N °
27.341 that would allow the cancellation of a relevant pomon of all debt with CAMMESA and whose claim is’ ongoing, v)
any step in the negotiation process does not nnply‘a waiver of the right ongmated in amcle 15 of Law No. 27,341.

‘_Based on the considerations detailed in prevxous paragraphs, the Dlrectors conclude that Andma s financial.statements
carrectly reflect the current debt situation with CAMMESA and there is a reasonable expectation that EDEMSA wﬂl have the
necessary resources to continue in the normal course of its operations in the foreseeable future. :

At year end, EDEMSA had payables past due to CAMMESA of US$ 62 8 mllhon (2017 US$ 109.9 mllhon excludmg
) penaltles) In AR$ 2 364 million (2017: ARS 2, 046 mxlhon)
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21 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ‘

- The Group The Company =~ =~ -
31-Dec-18 - 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17 -
_ US$'000 USS$'000 - US$'000" -~ USS$'000
Current , : ‘ : : :
"’ Bank borrowings . . . 853 3518 - -
_ Other borrowings - 8,88 3431 7,454 3,097
* Finance leases o213 . 260, - -
' 9,952 7,209 7,454 . 3,097
- Non-current : .
~ Bank borrowings ... - . - 1,285 Cos -
“.Other borrowings o 997 6,929. 913 5,652
Finance leases ’ 614 ___ 858 - -
il - - 913 T 5,652

9,072 -

1,611

. At 31 December 2018, the Group and Cempany had other bon*ewin'és primiry comprised of:

Group -

" Current: (a) a US$7.4 mllhon loan in default can'ymg interest at a rate’ of ll% per annum, (b) a commltment to defer
repayment of AR$46 million (US$1.22 million) until July 2021 with a rate of LIBOR per annum; (c) a AR$6.2 million
(US$0.16 million) loan carrymg interest at a rate of 5% per annum repayable in monthly instalments; (d) a ARS$1,5 million
-(US$0.04 mllllon) loan carrymg mterest at a rate of BADLAR plus 5% per annum repayable in monthly mstalments

Non current: (@a AR$3 mllllon (US$0 08 mllhon) loan ‘carrying mterest at a rate of BADLAR plus 5% per arinum repayable -
in monthly instalmeénts; (b) a US$0.9 million loan carrying interest at.a rate of 8% per annum repayable by December 2021.

Company -

(i) a US$7.4 million loan in default carrymg mterest ata rate of 11% per annum (see sectlon 2.2); and () other borrowmg
mclude a US$0. 9 million loan w1th no coupon and no fixed repayment date: - .

_ The maturity proﬁle of ﬁnancnal liabilities based on gross discounted cash flows is summarized below:

The Company

The Group -
31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-18 .. 31-Dec-17
- -US$'000 USS$'000 US$’000 US$'000
Maturity profile C : : ’
Wlthm 1 year 9,952 - ... 7,209 7,454.. . 3,097
' Between 1 andSyears = . —1,611 _-9,072 - 913 . 5,652
11, 563 -8, 749

16281

8,367

The dxrectors consuler that the carrying amount of financial Ilabxlmes approx1mates to their falr value

Movemems of financial liabilities are summarized below:

" 31-Dec-18

31-Dec-17
L . USS$'000 - USS$'000
December 31, 2017 ) - 16,281 14,582
Proceeds from borrowing - ‘ - - 464 2,893
" ‘Accrued interests : o 771 7,030
Repayments of borrowings and interest paid . (5,953) (8,224)
December 31, 2018 11,563 - 16,281
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" 22. PROVISIONS | A .
' Fines* Legal claims~ Total

o o . - US$'000 - . USS$'000 US$'000

-+ At1January 2017 : - 11,826 1,094 12,920 -
.- Additional provisions ' » - 15,110 © 541 - 15,651
" Used/Paid during the year o (L,751) . -(269) (2,020)
_Foreign éxchange movements _(2,701) - (178) . (2,879)
" At 31 December 2017 - 22,484 - 1,188 23,672
- Additional provisions’ ' - 5,861 T 526 6,387
_ .. Used/Paid during the year ' (5,309) 297 (5,606)
. Foreign exchange movements ) (11,351) . (600) (11,951)

At 31 December 2018 ‘ . 11,685 o817 - 12,502

31-Dec-18 ..31-Dec-17
T US$'000 US$'000
Current . : < c 11,995 .-~ -22,983

. Noncurrent - L 507 =" 689

12,502 23, 672

:The provisions represent provisions for certain claims, relating to penaltles in connection wnth service quahty, whlch are
_expected to crystallise within four-years after the reporting date. The provisions.charge is recognised in the income statement

o within. cost of sales. In management’s opinion, after taking appropriate. legal advice, the outcome of these claxms is unlikely-

L 1o give rise to any sngmﬁcant loss in excess of the amounts provnded o T . -

~ The balance includes US$11.9 |mlhon as current and US$0.5 million as non-current. All fines are current. Of the pl‘OVlSlOﬂ
‘for legal claims as at 31 December 2018, US$0.3 million is current and US$0.5 million is non- -current. Of the provxslon for
legal clains as at 31 December 2017, US$0.4 miHion is current and US$0.7 million is non-current. :
*For further detaxl see Note 2,27
. 23. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

31-Dee-18  31-Dec-18 - 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-17

_ : . No. US$°000 ~ No. -US$000
"Allotted, called up and fully paid . . : .
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each L '06, 156 114 hike - 14, 904 96,156,114 14,904
Redeemable preference shares of £1 . 50,000 .8 50,000 s 78

" "The redeemable preference shares are classified 2§ noniéurréllt_ liabilities (see Noté 21).

The issued share capital is broken down as follows: .

2018 2017
No. No.
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each : ' -

Balance at beginning and end of year . ' 96,156,114 96,156,114
2018 . 2017
. . No. . - No.

Redeemable preference shares of £1 each , .
Balance at beginning and end of year o ’ 50,000 50,000
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24, WARRANTS |
.'lf.he Grqup ltas constituted warrant insttuments to create and iséue wananté'tq subscribe for ordinary shares.

’

_ Details of warrants granted are as follows:

. - Exercise period ’ o At " Granted Lapsed - Atend . Exercise
' ' 1 January ' durmg year during year of year Price
2018 - 2018 2018 - 2018 ’
) ’ . No. No. No. No. ]
‘June 2012 to June 2019 2,158,120 - N - 2,158,120 S4 pence . . |
Jénuary 2013 to January 201 8 ) 7,824,000 ' - (7,824,0000 - 54 pence
9,982,120 - (7,824,000) 2,158,120 :

' '( ) These warrants were not exercised at the date of issuance of these fmancxal statements.

The fair values of warrants not yet lapsed which fall under the scope of IFRS 2 were calculated using the Black-Scholes
model: The estimated fair values of options, wlnch fall under IFRS 2 and the inputs used in the maodel to calculate those fair
’ values are as follows:

N a Expected Risk free . Expected

: Estimated Share price.at Exercise  volatility Expected rate dividends

Date of grant Number‘ fair value date of gt-imt price percentage life years percentage percentage
June 2012 12,158,120 '23 pence  45. 25 pence*. 54 pence. . 53% T 1.80% 0%

" ) The share price’is the pre demerger share price of Andes and the volatility was derived from the pre-demerger Andes share’
act|v1ty

Warrants granted to and held by directors durmg the year are detailed below:

01-J :m-18 ' _Granted in ‘Lapsed during- 31-Dec-18 Exercise - Exercise

~ the year " Year Price Dates
: . _ No. . No. . No. " - Ne. ’
Neil Bleasdale - 423,800 - - : - .423,800 54 pence 2019
Luis Alvarez Poli ’ 293,400 - - - 293,400 54 pence 2019
Marcelo Comba 65,200_ _ - - 65,200 54 pence 2019
Nigel Duxbury (*) 130,400 - - - 7 130,400 54 pence 2019
Senior Management . 1,245,320 - - . - 1,245,320 54 pence 2019
2,158,120 ‘ - -

2,158,120

(*) Not appomted as director smce Apnl 2018.

' 25 NON-CONTROLLING [NTERESTS . _ )
31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

v

US$'000 US$'000

: ) o . (Restated)

At January ' . . (3,065) - 5,162
Profit/(Losses) attributable to non-controlllng interests o 10,371 - (7,543)
Translation differences ' : S T 48,894 . (684)
At 31 December - . o ‘ _ 56,200 (3,065)

26. RESERVES
Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose following the completion of the demerger on 11 July 2012.
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26. RESERVES (contmucd)
‘Transla_non-reserve
-::. The translation reserve results from exchonge’ differences arising from the trenslation of the assets and liabilities of the

Group’s operations into the presentation currency at exchange rates prevarlmg on the reportmg date, and income and expense
‘items at the average exchange rates for the year. .

27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS _ :
31-Dee-18  31-Dec-17
US$000  USS'000 . -

Commitments for the acqursmon of property, plant and equrpment - 13,491 . 26,650

Al amounts are categorlsed as ]ess than one year

28._ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

-The directors have revievred the consoIidatedr financial statements and 'have concluded that there are no significant
differences between the book values and the fair values of the assets and liabilities of the Group and Company as at 31
December 2018. .

~ Capitalrisk man'lgement

. The Group s objectlves when managing capital are fo safeguard the Group’s abrhty to contmue as a going concern, to

" maintain sufficient financial flexibility in order to undertake its mvestment plans, and to optimise the werghted average cost

of capital and tax efficiency.

To maintain or adjust the optimum capital structure, the Group may put in place new debt facilities, issue new capital for
cash, repay or restructure exrstmg debt, amend its dividend policy, or undertake other such restructuring activities as

o approprrate

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirernems.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt ratio, that is, the ratio of net debt to net debt plus equity. Net debt is
calculated as gross debt, as shown in the statement of ﬁnancxal position, less cash and cash equ1valents and excludes finarice
lease liabilities. : .
The Group
" 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17
T - . . _ US$'000 US$'000 -
" Borrowings, excluding finance lease liabilities : ‘ 110,736 14,963 .

Less: Cash and cash equlvalents A (22,341) A (5,106) -
Net debt o : -- . (11,605) ~ . 9,857
Equity and net debt - - . ‘ - 83,230 (19,372)
Net debt ratio - o . (14%) (51%)

" The directors consider the net debt ratio to be within the acceptable range, consrdermg the effect of IAS 29 over equity
4 explamed in Note 2.10.

Financial risk management '

" The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, trade and other
financial payables and borrowings. The Group does not speculate in financial instruments. The numerical disclosures in this
note deal with financial assets and liabilities as defined in IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure.” The Group is exposed
through its operations to a number of financial risks. Financial risk comprises market risk (including currency risk, interest .
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policy for managing these risks is set by the key management

* of the Company and the respective subsidiary and all such risks are managed at the Company and subsidiary level within the

organisation. The policies for these risks are described further below: . .
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28. F‘INANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Demvanves, JSinancial mstrmmnts (mdnsk manngement e

The Group does not use denvatlve mstruments or fmanclal instruments to manage its exposure.to ﬂuctuatlons in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and commedity pnces The Group does not enter into hedgmg positions m respect of

its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Market risk

- The Grbup takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in (a) foreign currencies and (b) interest

bearing liabilities and commodity risks; all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. Management

. .does not set limits on the value of risk that may be accepted. However, management is on'alert for* sngmf cant market

movements and takes these movements into account in their future dealmgs

B Sensxtlvmes to market nsks mcluded below are based on a change in a factor while holdmg all other factors constant. In
. practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the factors may be correlated, for example changes in interest rate

and changes in foreign currency rates.

Foretgn Clli rency risk management

Currency rlsk is the nsk that the falr value or future cash ﬂows of a financial instrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes in

forelgn exchange rates. .

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risks on certain bank deposnts ‘debtors and credltors denommated in a dxfferent
currency from their funct\onal cum:ncy :

The Group s exposure to forelgn currency” risk mamly related to balance in USS$, based on carrymg amounts at-the reporting
date as follows: '

2018 - 2017
. : US$'060  USS'000

Trade and other receivables (Note 15) .- 2,478 1,510°
Cash and cash equivalents 8,681 1,289
Liabilities (Note 20 and 21) N o (20,629)  (16,824)
Net exposure : _ ‘ . (9,470) . (14,025)

The followlng table presents sensitivities of profit and loss (after tax) and equity to changes in cxchange rates apphed at the.

end of thc year relative to the functlonal currency of the Group, with all other variables held constant:

31-Dec-18 |
: USs$'ao0
Functional currency strengthening by 25% 1,972

: Functlonal currency weakemng by 25% o (1,972)

Intcrest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial mstrumcnt will fluctuate because of changes
in'market interest rates. If variable interest rates increased by 1% compared to the current rate this would result in a US$0.66
million higher income/charge. The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk comes from variable interest liabilities
and its fair value interest rate risk through its fixed rate borrowings.

The Group does not have formal policies and procedures m place for management of interest rate nsks as management
consnders this risk as insignificant to the Group’s business.. g
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contmued)
. Financial risk n_mnagement (contmued)_

. Price risk _

Whilst the Group is rot subject to price risk due to the service nature of the services it provides the Group’s business is based
" on a regulated tariffstructure. If future tariff reviews are not forthcoming, this will adversely affect cash flows and the ability .
of the Group to invest in the business and could impair Group asset values (see Note 12 and 13). The Group has not entered -
into any derivative arrangements in this respect. In connection with electricity sales, the Group is not exposed to risk in relation

. to fluctuations in the prices paid to purchase the electricity i in the market since any price fluctuations are passed on to the

’ customers

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to the purchase of copper wires used in the dlstnbutlon networks.

" The Group does not use derivatives to hedge this risk. The Group is also exposed to price risk due to inflationary increases in
the price of thesgoods and services it purchases. To manage its exposure to this risk, the Group has stated business practices
aimed to select the most convenient suppliers, which ensure minimizing the costs of purchasmg inputs without resigning the
quality of them : .

Creditrisk T e e

The Group’s business is exposed to credit risks due to the possibility that customers may fail to meet their financial obligations.

" In accordance with the local legislation, the Group is not able to subject its customer portfolio to a regular credit risk assessment.”
The Group has the right to disconnect services if customers fail to meet their financial obligations. The Group is also subject to
counterparty credit risk attributable to its deposits of cash and cash equivalents. The risk is.limited because the counterparties

. are banks with high credit ratings assngned by international credlt-ratmg agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maxnmum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit l'lSk at the _
- reporting date was: ’

The Group ' The Company
. o : 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17
. T B US$'000 Uss$'000 USs'000 US$'000

. Financial assets within trade and other receivables_- © 40,435 55,043 100 2,805
Cash and cash equivalents . . ’ a 22,341 5,106 20 19
62,776 60,149 | 120 . 2,824

. Liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meetmg obligations assocnated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

quuldlty rlsk is momtored by the Group to ensure that it has sufficient resources to meet its financial obhgatlons as they fall
- due. <7 - :

“The liquidity risk of the Group is managed by the Board. New borrowings are taken on where additional funds are required.
The Group intends to maintain a balance of funding designed to reduce liquidity risks whilst also seeking to minimise the
costs of borrowing. Where approprlate the board. will seek additional funds from the issue of share capital, private or public
placements.

" The Group monitors its liquidity requirements through monthly management accounts and periodic cash flow forecasts. -

The circumstances around the material uncertainty for the going concern assumption are discussed in note 2.2, Additionally,
details explaining the situation in relation to amounts due to CAMMESA are discussed in note 20.1. :

The table below shows the Group and Company’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2018 by their remaining contractual
maturity. The amounts disclosed in the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Such undiscounted cash
flows differ from the amount included in the statement of financial position because the balance presented in the statement of
financial position is based on discounted cash flows. :

N
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contmucd)

- Financial risk management (contmued) :
* Liguidity risk (continued)

‘Less than

More than

Total

- Group - From '
R lyear 1to5years 5 years Future
, : U Payments
. - US$'000 US$'000. US$'000-  USS$'000
Borrowings 12,021 3,020 - 15,041
~ Creditors 106,233 31,290 11,870 149,394
o ' 118,254 34,310 . 11,870 164,435 -
Company ~ ‘Less than From =~ More than Total
o lyear 1to5 years - Syears Future
} - Payments
US$'000 US$'000 - US$'000 US$'000
. Borrowings . 9,247 . . 1,214 - 10,461 . .
- - Creditors: - 908 2,289 - . 3,197
10,155 . 3,503 - . 13,658

S

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of a financial mstrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in the market
For the purpose of estimating the fair value of financial assets maturing in less than one year, the Group uses the market
value. For other investments, the Group uses quoted prices in the market. In relation to financial liabilities, since most loans
- are taken at variable rates or fixed rates that approximate to market rates, the falr value of loans approximates their can‘ymg

value.

" Set out below is a detail of the carrymg amount and fair values of the Group sfi nancxal mstruments The different levels have

been deﬁned as follows:

: Level 1; valued usmg trading prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

'Level 2: valued using inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, exther d1rect|y (that is as pnces) or mdlrectly (that .

" are denved from prices); and

Level 3: valued using |nputs that are not observable for the asset or liability.

The Group The Company

‘31-Dec-18 31-Dec-1731-Dec-18  31-Dec-17
. US$'000  -USS'000 USS'000  US$'000

Financial assets ‘

Trade receivables and other -

receivables* 40,335 55,043 100 2,805
** Financial assets** 38,465 - 29,104 e .
~ Cash and cash equivalents 22,341 5,106 20 19
’ ' ' 101,240 - 89,253 120 2,824

* Not included tax credit and advance-payments
**The listed government securities are Level 1
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- 29, FlNANClAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group The Company
31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17 31_-Dec-l‘8 31-Dec-17
US$'000 USS$'000 US$'000 US$'000

_Financial liabilities .~ S .
Borrowings B -~ 1,563 16281 | 8,367 8,749 - '
Trade and other payables* ' _ 170,046 . . 204,078 3,496 - 1,256

. . . . 181,609 220,359 11,863 ° 10,005
~ * Not included social security and other taxes .

30. RELATED PARTY '_I_‘_RANSACTIONS -

Company

* Amounts outstandmg at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 owed by and due to the Company s subsidiaries are
presented below. These balances$ have been ellmmated on consolldatlon

Other debtors Other creditors

. »vi  Related party: ' 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17 31-Dec-18  31-Dec-17
i : : o I © US$'000. USS'000.  USS$'000  US$'000
"' Andes Energy Limited ~~ -~ T . 2,705 - -

" AESA : - a co - - - "363

o : - 2,705 - 363

‘ Related party balances generally represents payments on behalf of said entity. No other transactions occurred with related
parties.

- Key Management Compensation

Compensanon and other transaction for key management of the Company who have authority for planning, dlrectmg and
controlling the Group;
The Group - The Company
31-Dec-18 " 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
US$'000. USS$'000 ~ USS$'000 - USS$'000

Salaries and other short term benefits . 468 1,318 80 - 98

~ Share based payments 25 25 25 25
Other debtors . , 2,578 775 23 - 775

3,071 2,118 128 898

*MAdditionally, other debtors includes US$ 2. 6 ml“lOll (2017 US$ 0.7 mlllxon) due to the Chalrman of the Company and a
related Company of the Chairman. .

The ultimate parent undertakmg and controlling party 1s Andina plc, a Company incorporated in England and Wales, United
Kingdom.

31. EVENTS AFT ER THE REPORTING DATE

When preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and transactions for subsequent recognition or
disclosure at 31 December 2018 and up to 13 August 2019 (date of issuance of these financial statements), and has identified
no significant subsequent events, except for: (i) the tariff increase for distribution segment inJuly 2019 and (ii) the
-devaluation of Argentine peso of 46.3% as of 12 August, 2019. The impact, calculated consistently with the foreign currency
risk management section sensitivities given in note 28 is a loss of US$ 0.9 million.
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